
 
 

 



 



Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

District No. 517 

Regular Meeting No. 613 
Monday, January 8, 2018, 6:00 p.m.  

Webb Hall 081, Mattoon  
Agenda 

I. Routine. 

 

A. Call to Order. 

 

B. Roll Call. 

 

C. Consent Item.  
(Any one member may remove an item from the consent item list simply by 
requesting the Chair to do so.  Items removed will be discussed and voted 
immediately following passage of the consent item.) 
 

1. Approval of Minutes of December 11, 2017, Regular Meeting.  
2. Approval of Minutes of December 11, 2017, Closed Session. 

3. Approval of Agenda of January 8, 2018, Board of Trustees Meeting. 
4. Bills for Payment and Travel Expenses.  

This information will be presented by College administration for approval 
with full assurance by management it has been prepared in good faith to 
follow all applicable laws and board policy. For summary and details of 
bills refer to: 
http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm 

5. Destruction of Tape Recording of July 11, 2016, Closed Session.  
 
 

II. Hearing of Citizens, Faculty and Staff. 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 3



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Agenda – January 8, 2018 
Page 2 
 

III. Committee Reports.  
 
A. ICCTA/Legislative   Mr. Mike Sullivan 

Ms. Ann Deters 

B. Resource & Development  Ms. Doris Reynolds 
C. Finance    Ms. Ann Deters 

D. Buildings & Site   Mr. Bruce Owen 
E. Student Report   Mr. Charles Meaker 
F. President’s Report   Dr. Josh Bullock 

 

IV. Business Items. 

 

A. Non-Action Items. 

  Board 
Book Page 
Number(s) 

1.   Quarterly Investment Report.   
2.   Proposed Revisions to Eight Board Policies Including:  

a. 05.04.08 – Bereavement Leave. 
b. 05.04.09 – Leave for Jury Duty or Court Attendance.  
c. 05.04.13 – Military Leave. 
d. 05.04.14 – General Leave of Absence without Pay.  
e. 05.14.15 – Absence Due to Inclement Weather. 
f. 05.04.16 – Sabbatical Leave for Administrators. 
g. 05.04.18 - Discipline and Suspension, Demotion or 

Dismissal for Cause. 
h. 05.04.21 – Vacations. 

23-36 

3.   Calendar of Events. 37-38 
4.   Correspondence. 

 
39-40 

 

B. Action Items. 

  Board Book 
Page 

Number(s) 
1.   Approval of Proposed Revisions to 21 Board Policies in 

Sections 9, 10 and 11 from Policy Manual Annual Review. 
41-94 

Board Book Page 4



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Agenda – January 8, 2018 
Page 3 
 

2.   Approval of Resolution No. 0118-007 to Adopt Proposed 
Changes to Board Policy 11.04.01 – Prohibition of Sexual 
Discrimination, Harassment, and Misconduct.    

95-104 

3.   Approval of Faculty Seniority Listing. 105-114 
4.   Acceptance of Reporting of November 2017 Financial 

Statements. 
115-120 

5.   Approval of 2018 Schedule of Board of Trustees Meetings.  121 
6.   Approval of MOU with the Paraprofessional Union 

regarding Position Changes.  
122-123 

7.   Approval of MOU with the Paraprofessional Union 
regarding Testing Requirements.  

124-125 

8.   Acceptance of the FY18 Cooperative Work Study Grant. 126 
9.   Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement with Illinois 

Eastern Community Colleges Dist. No. 529 for Educational 
Services with IDOC.  

127-131 

10.   Approval of Marketing Consultant.  132 
11.   Approval of Human Resources Report. 133-135 
 

C. Other Business. 

 

 

D. Adjournment. 

Board Book Page 5



Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

District No. 517 

 
Regular Board Meeting No. 612 

Webb Hall, Room 081, Mattoon, IL 
December 11, 2017 

 
Minutes   

 
Call to Order. 
 
Chair Storm called the December 11, 2017, regular meeting of the Lake Land College Board of 
Trustees to order at 6:00 p.m. in Webb Hall, room 081, Mattoon.  
 
Roll Call. 

 
Trustees Physically Present: Mr. Gary Cadwell; Ms. Ann Deters, Secretary; Ms. Doris 
Reynolds, Vice Chair; Ms. Meg Steward; Mr. David Storm, Chair; Mr. Mike Sullivan and Mr. 
Charles Meaker, Student Trustee. 

 
Trustees Absent: Mr. Bruce Owen. 

 
Others Present: Dr. Jonathan Bullock, President; Mr. Jon Althaus, Vice President for 
Academic Services; Mr. Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services; Ms. Jean Anne 
Grunloh, Senior Executive to the President; Dr. Jim Hull, Vice President for Workforce 
Solutions and Community Education; Dr. Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services; 
and members of the staff, community and media.    
 
Approval of Consent Items.  
 
Trustee Sullivan moved and Trustee Reynolds seconded to approve the following consent 
items:  
   

1. Approval of Minutes of November 13, 2017, Regular Meeting.  
2. Approval of Minutes of November 13, 2017, Closed Session. 
3. Approval of Agenda of December 11, 2017, Board of Trustees Meeting. 
4. Bills for Payment and Travel Expenses.  

This information was presented by College administration for approval with full 
assurance by management they were prepared in good faith to follow all applicable 
laws and Board policy. Summary and bills include: 

Board Book Page 6



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 2 of 17 
 

Education Fund $        228,387.78 

Building Fund $          40,500.00 
Site & Construction Fund $                        - 

Bond & Interest Fund $     6,718,426.12  

Auxiliary Services Fund $          38,940.03 
Restricted Purposes Fund $        497,629.45 

Working Cash Fund $                        - 

Audit Fund $                        - 
Liability Insurance Fund $              26,782.64 

Student Accts Receivables $          96,571.74 

Total $     7,647,237.76 
 

For details of bills refer to:                                            
http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm 
 

5. Destruction of Tape Recording of June 9, 2016, Board Retreat Closed Session and 
June 30, 2016, Special Meeting Closed Session. 

  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Hearing of Citizens, Faculty, and Staff.  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
Committee Reports. 
 
ICCTA/Legislative. 
 
Trustee Sullivan said he had not report at this time. 
 
Resource & Development. 
 
Trustee Reynolds, committee chair, said the committee met recently to review items which will 
appear later in the agenda.  
 
Finance. 
 
Trustee Deters, committee chair, said the committee met recently to review items which will 
appear later in the agenda.  

Board Book Page 7



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 3 of 17 
 

 
Buildings & Site. 
 
Board Chair Storm said the Buildings and Site Committee had not met since the last regular 
Board meeting and he had no report at this time.  
 
Student Report. 
 
Student Trustee Meaker highlighted recent events hosted by the Student Ambassadors and 
Student Government Association. He also highlighted the success of the Laker Visit Day held 
December 1, 2017.  
 
President’s Report. 
 
Dr. Bullock said the College recently welcomed 121 prospective students to Laker Visit Day on 
December 1, 2017, along with 41 parents. He said this makes a grand total of 185 students 
participating in Laker Visit Days thus far in academic year 2017-2018. He congratulated all 
staff involved who helped make the day a success and said the next Laker Visit Days are 
scheduled for February 9, 2018 and March 23, 2018.   

Business Items. 
 
Non-action Items. 
 
Faculty Focus on Advancing Student Success.   
 
Trustees heard a presentation from Mr. Dyke Barkley, Horticulture Instructor, on the Collegiate 
Farm Bureau at Lake Land College, a new student club approved by the Board in November 
2017.  
 
Proposed Revisions to 21 Board Policies in Sections 9, 10 and 11 from Policy Manual 
Annual Review.  
 
Trustees reviewed details of proposed revisions to 21 policies in sections 9, 10, and 11, along 
with a brief synopsis of the need for revisions to each policy. Dr. Bullock said these revisions 
are part of the Cabinet’s annual review of the Board Policy Manual in its entirety.  
 
Trustee Reynolds said the Resource and Development Committee met recently for an in-depth 
review of the proposed revisions and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the 
Board approval of all revisions as presented.  
 
Recommended revisions were submitted as first reading and will be brought to the Board for 
action during the January 2018 regular Board meeting.  
 
 
 

Board Book Page 8



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 4 of 17 
 

Calendar of Events. 
 
Trustees received a calendar of upcoming events.  
 
Correspondence.  
 
Trustees reviewed one item of correspondence. 
 
Action Items. 
 
Approval of Proposed Revisions to 77 Board Policies in Sections 5, 6 and 7 from Policy 
Manual Annual Review. 
 
Trustees learned that proposed revisions of 77 policies in sections 5, 6 and 7 from the Policy 
Manual Annual Review process were presented to the Board during the November 2017 
regular Board meeting as first reading for initial consideration and that the administration has 
received no requests for additional changes since that time. 
 
Trustee Reynolds, Resource and Development Committee Chair, said the Committee 
reviewed all recommended revisions in November 2017 and the Committee’s consensus was 
to recommend to the Board approval of the revisions as presented.  
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Deters seconded to approve as presented proposed 
revisions to 77 policies in sections 5, 6 and 7 of the Board Policy Manual.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Proposed Revisions to Eight Board Policies Including:  
 

a. 11.09 - First Amendment Guarantees. 

b. 07.28.01 - Student Code of Conduct and Disciplinary Procedures. 

c. 07.32 – Navigator. 
d. 09.06 - Outside Group Usage. 

e. 09.08 - Use of Facilities on a Non-Charge Basis. 

f. 09.16 - Temporary Indoor Signage and the Distribution of Materials. 

g. 11.14 - Solicitation by Non-College Personnel. 
h. 11.16 - Speakers, Performers and Presenters. 

 
Trustees learned that proposed revisions were submitted as first reading during the November 
2017 regular Board meeting and the administration has received no additional requests for 
changes since that time. 

Board Book Page 9



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 5 of 17 
 

 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to approve as presented proposed 
revisions to eight Board Policies including numbers 11.09, 07.28.01, 07.32, 09.06, 09.08, 
09.16, 11.14, and 11.16.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy 10.33 – Payroll Withholdings.  
 
Dr. Bullock said proposed revisions were submitted as first reading during the November 2017 
regular Board meeting and the administration has received no additional requests for changes 
since that time. 
 
Trustee Sullivan moved and Trustee Deters seconded to approve as presented revisions to 
Board Policy 10.33 – Payroll Withholdings. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Acceptance of Reporting of October 2017 Financial Statements. 
 
Trustees reviewed the October 2017 Financial Statements and a memorandum from Mr. Bryan 
Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services, highlighting variances for the statements. This 
information included a summary of all operational expenditures (Funds 1 and 2) year to date 
as compared to budgeted amounts, a salary and benefits summary.  
 
Trustee Deters said the Finance Committee met recently for an in-depth review of the October 
2017 Financial Statements and that the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the 
Board approval of the Statements as presented.  
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Steward seconded to approve the October 2017 Financial 
Statements as presented.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 

Board Book Page 10



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 6 of 17 
 

 
Approval of Resolution No. 1217-005 – Authorize Preparation of Tentative Budget.  
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Bullock to approve the above-referenced 
Resolution. Dr. Bullock noted that the Board annually approves a resolution to authorize 
administration to begin preparation of the annual budget for the forthcoming year.  
 
Trustee Sullivan moved and Trustee Reynolds seconded to approve as presented Resolution 
No. 1217-005 to authorize preparation of the tentative FY 2019 Budget. A full and complete 
copy of the Resolution is attached to these minutes. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Certificate of Tax Levy.   
 
Trustees received a recommendation from Mr. Gleckler for approval of the 2017 tax levy and 
related certificate of compliance.  
 
Trustee Deters said the Finance Committee met recently for an in-depth review of the 
proposed 2017 tax levy and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the Board 
approval as presented.  
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to approve the 2017 tax levy and 
related certificate of compliance. A full and complete copy of the 2017 Tax Levy and Certificate 
of Compliance is attached to these minutes.  
 
The 2017 Certificate of Tax Levy is as follows: 

Community College District No.   517   County(ies) Christian, Clark, Clay, Coles, Crawford, Cumberland, 
Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie, and Shelby  
 
Community College District Name:                Lake Land College                           and State of Illinois 
 
We hereby certify that we require: 
 
the sum of $ 4,800,000    to be levied as a tax for educational purposes (110 ILCS 805/3-1), and 
 
the sum of $ 770,000 to be levied as a tax for operations and maintenance purposes (110 ILCS 

805/3-1), and 
 
the sum of $ 3,725,000 to be levied as an additional tax for educational and operations and 

maintenance purposes (110 ILCS 805/3-14.3), and  
 

Board Book Page 11



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 7 of 17 
 
the sum of $ 1,172,000 to be levied as a special tax for purposes of the Local Government and 

Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act (745 ILCS 10/9-107), and  
 
the sum of $ 388,000 to be levied as a special tax for Social Security and Medicare insurance 

purposes (40 ILCS 5/21-110 and 5/21-110.1), and 
 
the sum of $ 69,000 to be levied as a special tax for financial audit purposes (50 ILCS 310/9), 

and 
 
the sum of $ 1,540,000 to be levied as a special tax for protection, health, and safety purposes (110 

ILCS 805/3-20.3.01), and 
 
the sum of $____________ to be levied as a special tax for (specify) ______________________ 

_________________ purposes, on the taxable property of our community 
college district for the year ________. 

 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Resolution Number 1217-006 - Abating the Tax Heretofore Levied for the 
Year 2017 to Pay Debt Service on General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2016B, of Community College District No. 517.  
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Bullock to approve the above-referenced 
Resolution. Dr. Bullock said this action is necessary on an annual basis because the obligation 
bonds for the Fitness Center are paid through student fees.  
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Sullivan seconded to approve as presented Resolution No. 
1217-006 - Abating the Tax Heretofore Levied for the Year 2017 to Pay Debt Service on 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2016B, of 
Community College District No. 517. A full and complete copy of the Resolution is attached to 
these minutes.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Rejection of Bids for Basketball Backboards. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Gleckler to reject bids received from the 
administration’s solicitation for the replacement of four basketball backboards in the Field 
House (Project No. 2017-014). Trustees learned that only one bid was submitted through the 

Board Book Page 12



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 8 of 17 
 

College’s required process and the only acceptable bid was well over the budget the College 
had allotted for this project. 
 
Trustee Deters said the Finance Committee met earlier in the month for an in-depth review of 
the bid rejection recommendation and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the 
Board rejection of the bids as presented.  
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Storm seconded to reject all bids received for Project No. 
2017-014, with a bid date of November 20, 2017, for the replacement of four basketball 
backboards and authorize the administration to re-bid for this same project.     

There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Contract with IDOC to Provide Educational Services at Joliet Treatment 
Center. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Bullock and Dr. Jim Hull, Vice President for 
Workforce Solutions and Community Education, for the Board to approve a six-month contract 
with the Illinois Department of Corrections and provide for the initial offering of two programs, 
Commercial Custodial Maintenance and Horticulture, at Joliet Treatment Center.  
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Steward seconded to approve as presented the contract 
with the Illinois Department of Corrections for the College to provide educational services at 
Joliet Treatment Center for a six-month period commencing January 1, 2018.   
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Bid for Compact Cargo Van. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Gleckler for the Board to approve the bid from 
K.C. Summers Nissan of Mattoon for the purchase of a 2017 Nissan NV200 cargo van from in 
the amount of $20,667. Mr. Gleckler said that, although the bid from K.C. Summers is not the 
lowest bid, it is his belief the van proposed by K.C. Summers offers the best value to the 
College after consideration of different vehicle features, warranties, and gas mileage of the 
proposed van.  
 

Board Book Page 13



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 9 of 17 
 

Trustee Deters said the Finance Committee met recently for an in-depth review of the bid 
recommendation and that the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the Board 
approval of the bid from K.C. Summers as presented.  
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to approve the bid from K.C. Summers 
Nissan of Mattoon for purchase of a 2017 Nissan NV200 cargo van in the amount of $20,667. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Letter of Agreement with Educational Advisory Board. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Bullock and Dr. Stovall for the Board to approve a 
three-year membership commitment for ongoing consultative services provided through the 
Educational Advisory Board (EAB) Community College Executive Forum at a total cost of 
$78,813 over that period. Trustees learned that EAB is a best practices firm serving 
educational institutions by identifying the best new ideas and proven practices and customizing 
them for implementation at individual member organizations. 
 
Trustee Reynolds said the Resource and Development Committee met recently for an in-depth 
review of the proposed letter of agreement and the Committee’s consensus was to 
recommend to the Board approval of the agreement and three-year commitment with EAB.  
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to approve as presented the letter of 
agreement with the Education Advisory Board for a three-year, Community College Executive 
Forum membership commitment commencing December 12, 2017, and ending December 11, 
2020, with a total cost of $78,813.00 over that period.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Acceptance of Agreement with LaunchCode. 
 
Trustees received a recommendation from Dr. Bullock and Dr. Jim Hull, Vice President for 
Workforce Solutions and Community Education, regarding a recommendation for the Board to 
approve an agreement with LaunchCode of St. Louis, Missouri, to provide an innovative 
computer coding workforce ready certificate program at Lake Land College. Dr. Bullock said 
that we will utilize Lake Land contracted instructors to teach LaunchCode’s curriculum delivery 
systems and train cohorts of students twice annually at the Kluthe Center. He also said we are 
partnering with the Effingham Regional Growth Alliance to connect with local companies and 

Board Book Page 14



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 10 of 17 
 

individuals who are interested in supporting students with scholarships, internship 
opportunities or full-time employment. 
 
Trustee Reynolds said the Resource and Development Committee met recently for an in-depth 
review of the proposed agreement with LaunchCode and the Committee’s consensus was to 
recommend to the Board approval of the agreement.  
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to approve as presented the 
Collaboration Agreement with LaunchCode of St. Louis, Missouri, effective January 1, 2018, 
for the creation of the LaunchCode Academy at Lake Land College to provide an 18-hour 
workforce ready certificate program in computer coding. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Closed Session. 
 
6:41 p.m. – Trustee Sullivan moved and Student Trustee Meaker seconded to convene to 
closed session, pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes Section 120/2(c)(1) and 
(21) [Illinois General Assembly 2017 et. Seq.], to discuss the appointment or employment of 
specific employees and to discuss minutes of meetings lawfully closed under the Open 
Meetings Act.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Return to Open Session – Roll Call. 
 
6:47 p.m.  
 
Trustees Physically Present: Mr. Gary Cadwell; Ms. Ann Deters, Secretary; Ms. Doris 
Reynolds, Vice-Chair; Ms. Meg Steward, Mr. Dave Storm, Chair; Mr. Mike Sullivan; and Mr. 
Charles Meaker, Student Trustee. 
 
Trustees Absent: Mr. Bruce Owen. 
 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 15



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 11 of 17 
 

Approval of Release or Non-Release of Closed Session Minutes as Discussed in Closed 
Session.    
 
Trustee Sullivan moved and Trustee Storm seconded to approve the release of four sections 
of closed session minutes for the period June 6, 2017, through December 10, 2017, including 
section 2 of the June 12, 2017, meeting, sections 1 and 2 of the August 14, 2017, meeting, 
and section 1 of the November 13, 2017, meeting, and not release the remaining eight 
sections of closed session minutes in this review period as the need for confidentiality still 
exists.  This action followed discussion on the topic held in closed session.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Human Resources Report as Discussed in Closed Session.   
 
Trustees reviewed the proposed Human Resources Report and Dr. Bullock highlighted specific 
recommendations for various positions. Dr. Bullock also highlighted a new section of the 
Human Resources Report titled “Position Recommendations: The following positions have 
been recommended by the Lake Land College President’s cabinet.”  He said this new section 
was reviewed and approved recently by the Resource and Development Committee.   
 
Following discussion on this item in closed session, Trustee Reynolds motioned and Trustee 
Cadwell seconded to approve the following Human Resources Report: 
 
The following employee has a family medical eligible event 
 
 Birdwell, Jodi FMLA 11/20/2017-12/3/2017 
 Ritchey, Eva FMLA 12/7/2017-1/7/2018 
 Spurling, Carolyn FMLA (intermittent) 11/7/2017 
 
Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are recommended for additional appointments 
   Position Effective Date 
Part-time 
    Van De List, Elizabeth Kluthe Test Proctor 10/19/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Associate-Lrng Asst  
             
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Miner, Linda Adult Education Adjunct Faculty 11/16/2017 
    Primary Position is BNA Clinical Instr Adult Ed 
               
    Van De List, Elizabeth Perkins Test Proctor 10/23/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Associate-Lrng Asst              

Board Book Page 16



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 12 of 17 
 

  
End Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are ending their additional appointment 
      Position Effective Date 
  Part-time 
    Holsapple, Sheila  BNA Sub 11/21/2017 
    Hott, Stuart  Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
 Kanizer, Tyler  Bookstore Rushworker 11/30/2017 
    Maillet-Gibson, Tiffany  Tutor 11/07/2017 
    Miller, Chris  Adm Records Data Entry Assistant 11/07/2017 
    Ruff, David  Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Siddens, Pamela  Dual Credit Instr/Coordinator 11/29/2017 
 
Position Recommendations 

The following positions have been recommended by the Lake Land College 
President’s cabinet   

 
 Position  Effective 
 Police Chief – from Supervisory to Administrative (Class only) 01/01/2018 
 Police Sergeant – from Support Staff to Supervisory (Class only) 01/01/2018 
 Director of Physical Plant – from Spv to Administrative (Class only) 01/01/2018 
     Marketing Specialist – New Position to replace Marketing Publication  
       & Design Coordinator (Level 13)  
 
New Hire-Employees 
  The following employees are recommended for hire 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time - Grant Funded 
    Hurt, Betheny Correctional Career Technology Instructor- 11/20/2017 
  Shawnee CC 
    Steyer, Melissa Correctional Office Assistant-Shawnee CC 11/20/2017 
 
Part-time 
    Buchenroth, Connie Library Assistant 11/21/2017 
    Cheung, Ho Hon International Student Ambassador 11/17/2017 
    Efe, Efehan International Student Ambassador 11/20/2017 
    Goldstein, Jayne Kluthe Test Proctor 11/20/2017 
    Hall, Cassandra Custodian 11/20/2017 
    Hallett, Trevor Athletic Trainer 11/01/2017 
    Hart, April Dual Credit Coordinator 11/17/2017 
    Huang, Hsin Hui International Student Ambassador 11/17/2017 
    Kwong, Kin Yuen International Student Ambassador 11/17/2017 
    Nino Pardo, Wilson International Student Ambassador 11/20/2017 
    Wheeler, Claire Special Needs Note Taker 10/24/2017 
 
Part-time - Grant Funded 

Board Book Page 17



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 13 of 17 
 

    Mounce, Kristina Perkins Student Worker - SSE 11/01/2017 
 
College Work Study’s 
 Defrates, Rachel College Work Study - Early Childhood Edu 08/31/2017 
    Newkirk, Cindy College Work Study - Early Childhood Edu 11/01/2017 
    Ruff, Tiffany College Work Study - Early Childhood Edu 11/28/2017 
    Williams, BreeAna College Work Study - Early Childhood Edu 11/27/2017 
  
Terminations/Resignations 
  The following employees are terminating employment 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
 Akins, Leann Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Bauman, Holly Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Boberg, Jennifer Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Bohnhoff, Tammie Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Bone, Judith Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Bonser, Harvey Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Bright, Amanda Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 Carver, Charlie Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Cowan, Britney Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 D'Arcy, Ryan Dual Credit Instructor 11/29/2017 
    Fatheree, Joseph Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Ehlers, Todd Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 Gard, Dara Dual Credit Instructor 11/29/2017 
    Gard, Robert Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 Hankins, Diane Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Hanner, Mandy Dual Credit Instructor 11/29/2017 
    Hooten, Sally Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Kannmacher, Mark Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Koleson, David Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 Lidy, John Dual Credit Instructor 11/29/2017 
    Lindvahl, Craig Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 Linker, Paula Dual Credit Instructor 11/29/2017 
    Maxwell, Joshua Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    McDonald, Dustin Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 Miller, Daryl Dual Credit Instructor 11/29/2017 
 Morrisey, Julia Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Munch, Mark Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Ochs, Janice Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Perkins, Kevin Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Pierson, Kenneth Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 Reeves, Karen Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Richey, William Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Romine, Amanda Dual Credit Instructor 11/29/2017 
    Schmidt, Mary Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 

Board Book Page 18



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 14 of 17 
 

 Schulze, Gary Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 Small, Katie Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Snearly, Jill Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Sparks, James Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 Steele, Kristin Dual Credit Instructor 11/29/2017 
 Thurnau, Douglas Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Totten, Mandy Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 Uebinger, Stephanie Dual Credit Instructor 11/29/2017 
    Van Dyke, Katrina Dual Credit Instructor 11/29/2017 
    Van Pelt, Paul Dual Credit Instructor 11/29/2017 
 Witmer, Jane Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Witmer, Russell Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
 
Full-time 
    Banker, Christopher Associate Dean – Kewanee 11/30/2017 
    Bartlett, Pamela Admin Asst Allied Hlth Dental-Retiree 11/30/2017 
    Bradley, Heather Corr Ofc Asst - Kewanee 10/23/2017 
    Chase, Michael Associate Dean – Illinois River CC 12/29/2017 
 Garren, Steve Director of Dual Credit - Retiree 12/31/2017 
    Rook, Frank Corr Auto Tech Instr - Graham CC-Retiree 12/29/2017 
    Spurling, Carolyn Corr Cosmetology Instr - Dixon CC-Retiree 12/29/2017 
 
Part-time 
    Allen, Richard Temporary Groundskeeper 11/21/2017 
    Anderson, Diane Non-Credit Instructor 11/21/2017 
    Backhus, Stephen Microcomputer Support Tech 10/13/2017 
    Beals, Kaylee Special Needs Note Taker 11/28/2017 
 Blair, Margaret Allied Health BNA Cln Instr 11/29/2017 
    Brimble, Patrick Adj Doc College Funded Instr 10/20/2017 
    Brimner, Cathy Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Brockhouse, Billy Adj Doc College Funded Instr 11/28/2017 
    Brown, Kenneth Adj Doc College Funded Instr 11/14/2017 
    Browning, Christina Non-Credit Instructor 11/21/2017 
    Bushue, Stephanie Special Needs Note Taker 11/28/2017 
    Cullen, Torey Special Needs Note Taker 11/28/2017 
    Cutright, Jeffrey Adj Faculty Technology 10/23/2017 
    Dapron, Meta Bookstore Rush Worker 11/30/2017 
    Endris, Kelle Adj Faculty Allied Health 11/14/2017 
    Eskew, Nancy Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Fesser, Darrell Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Foss, Anita Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Frainey, James Adj Doc College Funded Instr 12/01/2017 
    Gruis, Larry Dual Credit Coordinator 11/29/2017 
    Hagy, Kari Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Hanson, Quentin Non-Credit Instructor 11/21/2017 
    Henderson, Corinne Marketing Communications Specialist 11/22/2017 

Board Book Page 19



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 15 of 17 
 

    Hickox, David Dual Credit Coordinator 11/29/2017 
    Hinote, Nathan Adj Faculty Humanities  11/13/2017 
 Howell, Jessica Tutor Student TRIO SSS 11/21/2017 
    Ivemeyer, Sandi Adj Doc College Funded Instr 11/21/2017 
    Johnson, Sherra Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Kean, Robert Adj Doc College Funded Instr 11/28/2017 
    Keller, Tammela Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Kreke, Calvin Special Needs Note Taker 11/28/2017 
    Lading, Carol Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Leach, Beth Special Needs Note Taker 11/28/2017 
    Lowry, Alisha Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Martinez, Austin Clinical Dentist 11/21/2017 
    Maxwell, Crystal Adj Doc College Funded Instr 11/15/2017 
    Perzee, Haley Adj Doc College Funded Instr 11/15/2017 
    Pruemer, Maci Special Needs Note Taker 11/28/2017 
    Purvis, George Bsktball Scorers/Timers 11/15/2017 
    Reynolds, Michael Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Roberts, Kevin Non-Credit Instructor 11/21/2017 
    Ruholl, Sadie Allied Health Mass Therapy Adj 08/31/2017 
    Saad, David Adj Doc College Funded Instr 11/14/2017 
    Schuler, Jere Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Seibring, Danielle Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Smith, Krista Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Splittstoesser, Shirley Non-Credit Instructor 11/21/2017 
    Ssenfuma, Joseph Adj Doc College Funded Instr 11/14/2017 
    Stone, Kory Non-Credit Instructor 11/21/2017 
    Sudkamp, Dustin Graphic Designer Pre-Flight 11/29/2017 
    Thomas, Mark Dual Credit Coordinator 11/28/2017 
    Tucker, Hannah Library Assistant 11/22/2017 
    Vandermeer, Sharon Adj Faculty Business 11/14/2017 
    Vinyard, Nigel Adj Doc College Funded Instr 11/15/2017 
    Walk, Vince Bsktball Scorers/Timers 11/15/2017 
    Wallace, Ty Adj Doc College Funded Instr 11/14/2017 
    Welsh, Ann Dual Credit Instructor 11/28/2017 
    Westbrooks, Lisa Adj Doc College Funded Instr 12/01/2017 
    Westcott, Robert Technical Writer 11/21/2017 
    Witmer, Chelsea Special Needs Note Taker 11/28/2017 
    Yagow, Brianna Special Needs Note Taker 11/28/2017 
 
College Work Study 
    Pettigrew, Davion CWS Men's Basketball 11/15/2017 
  
Transfers/Promotions 
  The following employees are recommended for a change in position 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 

Board Book Page 20



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 16 of 17 
 

 Bear, Savannah Administrative Assistant to Humanities  12/12/2017 
  Transferring from:  Adm Asst to College Advancement 
 
 Rosine, Paula Director of Foundation Operations 12/12/2017 

Transferring from:  Marketing Publication & Design Coordinator 
 

 Shumard-Shelton, Lisa Director of Dual Credit & Honors Experience 01/02/2018 
  Transferring from:  Director of New Student Admissions 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Reynolds, Steward, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Owen. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Other Business. (Non-action) 
 
In follow up to discussions with Trustees during the October 26, 2017, Board Retreat, Dr. 
Bullock and Mr. Gleckler provided an update on the administration’s efforts to increase the 
College’s cyber liability insurance coverage. Mr. Gleckler said the administration has been 
working with consultant Dimond Bros. Insurance of Mattoon to review optimal options and that 
the administration has reviewed costs for purchasing cyber liability policy levels at $1 million, 
$2 million and $3 million in coverage, a substantial increase from the College’s current cyber 
liability coverage of $50,000. Dr. Bullock and Mr. Gleckler said they are recommending the 
College purchase the option for a $3 million liability policy effective January 1, 2018. Dr. 
Bullock said this total cost will be less $25,000 or the amount required for Board approval to 
purchase the increased coverage per Policy 10.22 – Purchasing and Bidding.  
 
Also in follow up to discussions with Trustees from the October 26, 2017 Board Retreat, Dr. 
Bullock and Mr. Gleckler provided an update on the administration’s plans for conducting a 
cyber security audit of the College’s systems in the near future. Mr. Gleckler said the estimated 
cost for such an audit is approximately $18,000 and this too will not require Board approval by 
the threshold for total cost and the fact this is a professional service (per Board Policy 10.22).  
 
There was no additional discussion.  
 
Adjournment. 
 
Trustee Storm moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to adjourn the December 11, 2017, 
meeting of the Lake Land College Board of Trustees at 7:08 p.m.   
Motion carried with unanimous voice vote approval. 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 21



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – December 11, 2017 
Page 17 of 17 
 

Approved by: 
 
________________________                      __________________________ 
Mr. Dave Storm, Board Chair     Ms. Ann Deters, Board Secretary 
 
*Note – See Board of Trustees web page for any referenced attachments to these minutes.   

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/  

Board Book Page 22



 
 
 

Memo 

 
To:  Dr. Josh Bullock, President 
 
From:  Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services 
 
Date:  December 18, 2017 
 
Re:  Human Resource Section Policy Updates  

  
 
In the annual review of Board Policies pertaining to Section 5, College Personnel, there were 
several policies that didn’t get updated to reflect the fact that the College now also contracts 
with the Illinois Department of Juvenile Justice as well as the Department of Corrections.  
Multiple policies have language that allow the contract language to prevail when a conflict with 
Board Policy may arise.   
 
Board Policies 05.04.08, 05.04.09, 05.04.13, 05.04.14, 05.04.15, 05.04.16, 05.04.18 and 
05.04.21 all need the Department of Juvenile Justice language added.  The language in each 
policy will resemble the following: For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth 
centers, when there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of Juvenile 
Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
I recommend the Board of Trustees approve updates to Board Policies 05.04.08, 05.04.09, 
05.04.13, 05.04.14, 05.04.15, 05.04.16, 05.04.18 and 05.04.21 to add the Department of 
Juvenile Justice to the policy language as appropriate.   
 

Board Book Page 23



 
05.04.08 

 
Bereavement Leave 

 
Each full-time employee will, in the event of a death in the immediate 
family, be granted a maximum of five (5) working days of bereavement leave 
per occurrence with full pay.  Immediate family is defined as the spouse, 
civil union partner, child, step-child, parent, step-parent, grandchild, brother, 
or sister of the employee. 
 
 
Bereavement leave with pay will be granted for a maximum of three (3) 
working days in the event of the death of mother-in-law, father-in-law, son- in-
law, daughter-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, grandparents, aunts, 
uncles, or foster parents. 
 
 
Bereavement leave must be taken within the first five (5) working days of the 
death of an immediate family member and within the first three (3) working 
days of the death of all other family members, but need not be taken 
consecutively.  Bereavement leave for any circumstances beyond those 
specifically mentioned may be authorized by the employee’s vice president. 
 
 
Bereavement leave days granted will not be accumulative from year to year, 
nor chargeable against any other paid employee leave. 
 
 
If circumstances require, days needed in addition to the five- and three-day 
allotments may be charged to personal and/or sick leave balances. 
 
Per the Child Bereavement Leave Act, employees are entitled to a maximum 
of ten (10) working days of unpaid leave for bereavement due to the death of 
a child or stepchild.  The employee must take any unpaid leave allowed under 
the Act within 60 days after they are notified of the death of a child. 
 
 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth center centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of Juvenile 
Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised November 11, 2002 
Revised June 13, 2011 
Revised June 9, 2014 
Revised February 13, 2017 
Revised 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 24



05.04.09 

 

 

Leave for Jury Duty or Court Attendance 
 
 
 
Employees who are summoned to court to perform jury duty shall be 
granted leave with pay.  Employees who are subpoenaed to attend court or 
board hearings to testify in matters in which they have no personal or 
monetary interest shall be granted leave with pay.  Any remuneration 
received for jury duty or for testifying before a court or a board shall be 
refunded to the college, excluding mileage.  Employees who attend court 
as parties to lawsuits or who have a personal or monetary interest therein 
will be granted leave without pay.  In any case, leave for jury duty shall not 
be charged to sick leave.  Employees are expected to report to their work 
assignment during a normal work day when their presence is not required 
in the court. 
 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of Juvenile 
Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 25



05.04.13 
 
 

Military Leave 
 
An employee who is drafted into military service or who volunteers for 
service in lieu of being drafted will be granted a leave of absence for the 
duration of the required military service. 
 
A person on military leave shall declare in writing to their Supervisor and 
the President a minimum of thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the 
leave his intentions to return to work.  All provisions of Public Law 87-291, 
Reemployment Rights, paragraph 22, shall apply. 
 
Upon expiration of the leave, the employee is eligible to apply to the State 
Universities Retirement System for experience credit in the pension 
system. 
 
The College will follow the provisions set forth in the Military Leave of 
Absence Act.1 
 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of 
Juvenile Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1   5 ILCS 325/1 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised December 11, 2017 
 
 
Page 1 of 1 

                                                 

Board Book Page 26



05.04.14 
 
 

General Leave of Absence without Pay 
 
 
A special leave of absence without pay and without loss of seniority, 
status, appointment or accrued benefits may be approved by the Board 
of Trustees.  In order for a special leave to be considered by the Board, 
the individual must have prior approval by the appropriate supervisor and 
administrator and the president of the College.  Requests must be 
submitted at least two weeks prior to the requested leave.  Unusual 
hardship cases will be considered on an individual basis.   
 
Special leaves of absence will not exceed sixty (60) days for each three 
(3) years of continuous service. 
 
The employee will notify the Human Resources Office in writing three (3) 
months prior to the end of the approved leave of his/her intention to: 
 
 1. Return to full-time employment at the College; 
 2. Terminate employment at the College; or 
 3. Request an extension of the leave. 
 
The employee may elect to participate in the State Universities 
Retirement System during the period of the leave (subject to all provisions 
of the retirement system), and the employee may elect to continue 
insurance coverage during the period of the leave (arrangements should 
be made in the Human Resources Office).  All employee contributions 
and insurance premiums, employee and employer share, will be the 
responsibility of the employee. 
 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of 
Juvenile Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised December 11, 2017 
Revised  
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 27



   

             Page 1 of 2 

 
05.04.15 

 
Absence Due to Inclement Weather 

 
 

To ensure consistency in reporting absenteeism during inclement 
weather periods, the following provisions will be followed. 
 
If the College is officially closed because of the weather, employees 
shall designate the date on the timecard as an “Official Closing” and 
credit the day as eight (8) hours worked. 
 
If the President authorizes a shortening of hours because of existing 
or anticipated inclement weather conditions, the employee shall 
designate the time in attendance on the timecard, followed by 
“College Closed” and credit the remaining hours of the employee’s 
shift. Employees who had taken the day off will have that day 
subtracted from their accrued benefit leave as would have occurred 
had the shortening of hours not happened. 
 
An employee who is unable to report during the hours or portions of 
days that the College is open will have the following options: 
 
1. Vacation and/or personal leave may be used in not less than one 
hour increments. 
 
2. Compensatory release time may be used. 
 
3. Employees who do not have available leave time or earned 
compensatory time will receive a corresponding deduction in pay. 
 
All absences must be recorded on the employee’s timesheet. 
 
Overtime will not be paid for any work that is completed at home 
during the period the College is closed.   
 
All Campus Police officers, because of the nature of their 
responsibilities, will report to duty at their regularly scheduled shift 
and will be paid at a rate of time-and-one-half.  

Board Book Page 28



  Board Policy               05.04.15 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, 
when there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department 
of Juvenile Justice contract(s) shall prevail.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised May 10, 1999 
Revised April 10, 2017 

Revised 

 

Board Book Page 29



05.04.16 
 
 

Sabbatical Leave for Administrators  
 
 
 
Sabbatical leave is a plan providing an opportunity for professional 
improvement with partial compensation following a designated number of 
years of consecutive service.   
 
 1. As a professional development activity, sabbatical leave is intended 

to provide an opportunity for activities of direct benefit to the College 
in the areas of advanced study and/or research. 

 
 2. An administrator who is employed full-time on an academic year or 

longer and who has served six (6) consecutive years at Lake Land 
College shall be eligible. 

 
 3. Such a leave may be awarded for one full academic year at one-

half (½) pay or for full pay for a leave of one semester.  
Administrators on sabbatical leave shall retain all accrued benefits 
during the period of sabbatical leave.  The College will continue its 
contribution to the fringe benefits plan. 

 
 4. The recipient must agree in writing to return to Lake Land College 

and render at least two (2) full years of service following completion 
of the leave.  In the event the recipient is physically or mentally able 
to serve for two (2) full years but elects not to do so, the individual 
must repay the College for any amount received during such leave. 
The recipient of the sabbatical leave shall be required to sign a 
promissory note for the amount of the sabbatical leave salary prior 
to the leave.  The note shall be declared void by the Board of 
Trustees if failure to meet its terms is the result of death or 
permanent disability as determined under the permanent disability 
provisions of the State Universities Retirement System. 

 
 
 
__________________ 
Page 1 of 2 

Board Book Page 30



    Board Policy No. 05.04.16 

 
 
 
 5. Upon his/her return to the College and within ninety (90) days, a 

complete written report on the activities, results, and outcomes of 
the sabbatical leave must be presented to the President for deposit 
in the professional collection at the College. 

 
 6. Eligible administrators desiring to be considered for sabbatical 

leave will file an application letter with the President on or before 
November 15 of the academic year prior to that in which the leave 
is desired.  This application letter must include a detailed description 
of the proposed use of the leave time. 

 
 7. Prior to March 31, the Board of Trustees shall render a decision 

concerning sabbatical leave for administrators who have applied.  
The Board of Trustees reserves the right to deny or to limit the 
number of sabbatical leaves in any one given year. 

 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of 
Juvenile Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised December 11, 2017 
Revised 
 
Page 2 of 2 

Board Book Page 31



05.04.18 
 
 
 

Discipline and Suspension, Demotion or Dismissal for Cause 
 
 
 

The primary purpose for the establishment and enforcement of College 
rules and regulations is to ensure the efficient operation and safe working 
conditions for all employees and students.  While on College premises 
and/or engaged in College business, employees are expected to observe 
College rules and Board policies. Employees who fail to do so are subject 
to disciplinary action up to and including demotion and dismissal. 

 

 

A first offense for certain misconduct which is of a serious nature could 
result in immediate dismissal without prior warning.  For other types of 
misconduct which are less serious, the employee’s supervisor may, at 
his/her discretion, choose to utilize progressive disciplinary action to give 
the errant employee a chance to correct his/her behavior.  A supervisor 
may skip steps or repeat steps, depending on the circumstances, but the 
basic progressive disciplinary process includes: 

 

 

1. Oral warning. 
2. Written warning, usually with counseling from the employee’s 

immediate supervisor. 
3. Suspension with or without pay. 
4. Demotion or dismissal. 

 

 

All disciplinary action resulting in suspension, demotion or dismissal must 
have the prior approval of the President of the College. 

 

 

For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of Juvenile 
Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 

 

 

Suspension, demotion or dismissal shall result from any conduct or 
circumstance that is detrimental to the general welfare of the College, 
including but not limited to excessive tardiness or absence; falsification of 
any employee record; failure or refusal to perform job responsibilities; theft 
of property or services; unauthorized use of College equipment, facilities 
or supplies for personal benefit or for gainful employment outside the scope 
of College employment; willful destruction of College or personal property; 
disruption of College operations; possession and/or 

 
Page 1 of 2 

Board Book Page 32



  Board Policy  05.04.18 
 
 
 

use of an illegal substance on campus; unauthorized possession or illegal 
use of firearms on College property; gross insubordination; incompetence; 
cruelty; negligence; harassment or intimidation; or immorality.  Before any 
non-probationary employee shall be suspended, demoted or dismissed, 
that employee shall be advised in writing of the suspension, demotion or 
dismissal and of the employee’s right to request a hearing before the 
Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised December 11, 2017 
Revised 

 

 

Page 2 of 2 

Board Book Page 33



 
Page 1 of 3 

05.04.21 
 
 

Vacations 
 
 
 
Supervisory and Support Personnel 
 
Vacation leave for full-time twelve (12) month employees working eight 
(8) hours or more per day will be applied according to the following accrual 
schedule: 
 
    Vacation Hours Earned 
  Anniversary Accrual                Per Month 
 
  Upon hire  6.67 
  One year   7.33 
  Two years  8.00 
  Three years  8.67 
  Four years  9.33 
  Five years  10.00 
  Six years  10.67 
  Seven years  11.33 
  Eight years  12.00 
  Nine years  12.67 
  Ten years  13.33 
 
Vacations will be scheduled in advance, approved by the supervisor, and 
staggered to ensure a reasonable staffing level at all times. 
 
College-funded employees may elect to carry-over into the next fiscal 
year a maximum of eighty (80) hours of earned vacation time.  All other 
vacation time earned by each employee must be taken as time off from 
work.  Vacation time cannot be accrued from year to year beyond the 
eighty (80) hour maximum accrual described above except in extenuating 
circumstances where the College may grant the employee an increase in 
the vacation carry-over balance in order to temporarily satisfy operational 
and staffing needs in a particular department of the College. All 
extensions of the eighty (80) hour maximum carry-over balance will be 
approved in writing by the immediate supervisor and the appropriate Vice 
President.  Approved requests will be forwarded to the Director of Human 
Resources. 
 
Requests for additional vacation without pay must be submitted in writing 

Board Book Page 34



  Board Policy               05.04.21 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

and approved by the immediate supervisor and the appropriate Vice 
President.  Approved requests are to be forwarded to the Director of 
Human Resources for subsequent Board action. 
 
Administrative Personnel 
 
Personnel employed as full-time administrators will earn 160 hours of paid 
vacation for each full year of employment.  The accrual rate is 13.33 hours 
per month.  Vacation may be taken as earned at the rate of 13.33 hours 
per month. 
 
Personnel employed as full-time administrators are covered by the 
following provisions: 
 
 1. A maximum total of 240 hours may be accumulated toward carry-

over.  The specific count of accumulated carry-over hours will be 
reviewed at the end of each fiscal year, and hours in excess of 240 
will be removed from the record. 

 
 2. Administrators will schedule vacation in consultation with the 

President and/or respective Vice Presidents to avoid unnecessary 
disruption of the College. 

 
 3. Vacations will be scheduled, where possible, not to exceed two (2) 

weeks at any one period. 
 
Support, Supervisory and Administrative Personnel 
 
Full-time employees working less than a twelve-month schedule will earn 
a proportionate amount of vacation hours. 
 
Vacation leave must be taken in not less than one-hour increments unless 
there is a balance remaining of less than one hour.  All vacation must be 
approved by the immediate supervisor. 
 
If an observed holiday or declared day off occurs during the vacation 
leave, employees will not be required to use vacation for that day. 
 
New employees will be eligible to take vacation hours earned provided 
that the ninety (90) day probationary period has been satisfactorily 
completed. 

Board Book Page 35



  Board Policy               05.04.21 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Years of service for computing accrual of vacation earned will be based 
on the employee’s position hire date. 
 
If the College establishes a four-day summer work schedule, any vacation 
days taken during this period will be charged at the rate of one and one-
quarter (1¼) vacation days, or ten (10) hours for each full work day taken.  
For every hour taken, 1.25 hours will be charged. 
 
Except for employees in a totally grant-funded position, all earned 
vacation time will be paid upon termination of employment. 
 
Employees in a totally grant-funded position who attempt to carry-over 
unused vacation hours at the end of a fiscal year do so at the risk of losing 
the vacation hours and pay for those hours if the grant funding is not 
renewed and employment with the College is terminated.  An employee 
in a totally grant-funded position shall be advised to take all earned 
vacation hours prior to the termination date of a grant-funded position to 
eliminate possible forfeiture of pay for such remaining hours. 
 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, if there 
is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of Juvenile 
Justice contract(s) shall prevail.   
 
 
 
 
 

__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised January 14, 2008 
Revised April 13, 2009 
Revised October 10, 2011 
Revised 
 

Board Book Page 36



______________ 
Revised 12/20/17 

 

 

 

Calendar of Events 
 
 
Monday, January 8, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, February 8, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, February 12, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, February 22, 2018 6 p.m. - Ag Banquet – Field House 
 
Thursday, March 8, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, March 12, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, April 5, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, April 9, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, April 12, 2018 4 – 5 p.m. Lake Land College Foundation Scholarship Reception 
 at the Field House 

5:30 p.m. Lake Land College Foundation Donor Recognition 
Reception at the Mattoon Golf & Country Club 
 

Thursday, May 10, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Friday, May 11, 2018 51st Annual Lake Land College Commencement Ceremony 
 5:30 p.m. Dinner in the West Building Atrium 
 7:30 p.m. Commencement Ceremony Field House  
 
Monday, May 14, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Friday, May 18, 2018  11:30 a.m. Lake Land College Foundation Golf Classic 
 Meadowview Golf Course 
 
 

Board Book Page 37



______________ 
Revised 12/20/17 

 

 

 

Thursday, June 7, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, June 11, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 38



Board Book Page 39



Board Book Page 40



 

 

Board of Trustees 

Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

January 3, 2018 

Revisions to Board Policies from Policy Manual Annual Review 

The College’s leadership team has conducted an annual review of the Board Policy Manual in its entirety. 
Due to the volume of policy changes, proposed revisions are being submitted as one agenda item for 
sections 9-11. Please see below a list of the proposed policy revisions in sections 9-11 that were 
submitted as first reading during the December 11, 2017, regular Board meeting, and have also been 
reviewed by the Resource and Development Committee in December 2017. Please also find attached 
details of the proposed revisions for each of these policies. We have received no additional requests for 
changes to these revisions since our initial presentations in December 2017. Thus, it is respectfully 
requested that the Board approved proposed revisions as presented during the January 2018 regular 
Board meeting. 

Policy Number - Narrative for Revision(s) 

09.04 Change from including specific hours of operation for the Fitness Center to 
stating that hours will be announced and posted via the College's website.  

09.05 For items 2 and 3, correct the language to reflect the appropriate area of 
responsibility as the Vice President for Workforce Solutions. In item 7, clarify 
the "conference room" space to be reserved instead of the term "office." 

09.11 Clarify language to specify an employee's assumed liability when he/she 
uses college equipment for private or personal use in exceptional cases.  

09.13 Delete Policy as this is no longer applicable given the advances in telephone 
technology.  

09.14 Remove outdated reference to “main” and clarify who will be given master 
keys. 

09.15 Add reference to Board Policy 09.12 in addition to Policy 10.26 as both 
Policies are relevant for disposal of surplus materials.  

Board Book Page 41



January 3, 2018 

Page 2 of 2 

10.21 Add in dollar threshold requirement for obtaining signature (approval) of Vice 
President of Business Services or President.  

10.22 Correct title changes and change formal bid threshold. 

10.23 Revise to reflect new bid thresholds. 

10.26 Update capital asset level from $5,000 to $10,000. 

10.28 In the last paragraph, eliminate "from time to time." This is redundant since 
the paragraph states the Board "may" employ an insurance consultant.  

10.28.01 Add in compliance language provided by Dimond Bros. 

10.34.03 Clarified responsibility for vehicle(s) assigned to specific division. 

10.38 To strengthen oversight of petty cash funds, add a sentence that states, "The 
use of any petty cash funds should be reviewed and approved at the 
beginning of each fiscal year by the Vice President for Business Services.”  

11.02 Update groups to match language in Policy 11.01. 

11.04 Update groups to match language in Policy 11.01 and change reference for 
students to appropriate policy governing student disciplinary process. 

11.05 Revise to clarify work under guidance of the Illinois Department of Public 
Health (IDPH). Simplify policy and still address students, employees and 
community members. 

11.06 Update to reflect that training documents are maintained in HR. 

11.08.01 Add appropriate reference to AFSCME and provide consistent language 
between board policy and what is in the collective bargaining agreements. 

11.13 Correct language to reflect that traffic and parking regulations are posted 
online instead of through the printing of a brochure. 

11.17 Update to reflect the College no longer has its own food service/catering 
operation and update to cite the process of outside catering. 

Attachments 

Board Book Page 42



 
Page 1 of 2 

09.04 
 
 

Field House/Gymnasium Use 
 
 
 
The priority for use of the gymnasium will be given to physical education 
classes, intercollegiate athletic practices and games, and intramurals.  
Intercollegiate team practice will be scheduled by the Athletic Department.  
Once a team’s practice times and days are established, they can only be 
adjusted by the Athletic Director with the consent of the Head Coach for 
that sport.  In case of inclement weather, every effort will be made among 
all parties involved to accommodate classes and athletic team practices.  
The gym is usually reserved for athletic games and intercollegiate team 
practices each weekend throughout the academic year.  Intramurals are 
generally scheduled in the gymnasium on Wednesday from 11:00 a.m. to 
1:00 p.m. during the academic year by the Director of Intramurals.  
Requests to use the gym during times scheduled for athletic or intramurals 
must receive approval of the respective director. 
 
 1. Gymnasium 
 
  A. All physical education classes in the gym are scheduled by the 

Division Chair for Social Science and Education and approved 
by the Vice President for Academic Services. 

 
  B. All home games and practices in the gym are scheduled by the 

coaches in consultation with the Athletic Director. 
 
  C. All intramural activities in the gym are scheduled by the Director 

of Intramurals. 
 
  D. The Earl Walden Meeting Room is scheduled by the Field 

House Operations/Divisional Administrative Assistant. 
 
  E. The classrooms in the Field House are scheduled by Division 

Chairs and approved by the Vice President for Academic 
Services. 

 
 2. Outside Group Usage 
 

Board Book Page 43



 

  Board Policy               09.04 
 
 

 
Page 2 of 2 

  Requests to use the Field House gymnasium, classrooms, and 
Earl Walden Conference Room should be directed to the Vice 
President for Business Services, who will coordinate the facility 
use with the Division Chair for Social Science and Education, the 
Athletic Director, or Director of Intramurals following the 
procedures set forth above.   

 
 3. Fitness Center 
 
  Use of the Fitness Center is limited to individuals with a current 

Lake Land College photo identification card.  The general hHours 
of operation of the Fitness Center are 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
Monday through Thursday and 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. on Friday 
will be posted on the College’s website.  The Fitness Center will 
not be used beyond scheduled hours, except for actual class 
situations or team situations under the instructor’s or coach’s 
supervision. 

 
 4. Athletic Weight Room 
 
  The use of the Athletic Weight Room will be scheduled through the 

Athletic Director and coaches, and its use will be generally limited 
to intercollegiate athletic team members.  Exceptions will be made 
by the Athletic Director.  While students are participating in weight-
lifting activities, there must be supervision by a coach, faculty 
member, or authorized personnel. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised September 13, 1999 
Revised March 8, 2004 
Revised November 9, 2009 
Revised 

Board Book Page 44



 
Page 1 of 2 

09.05 
 
 

Scheduling Facilities 
 
 
 
 1. All credit classes and upper division classes and graduate courses 

offered by outside educational institutions are scheduled through 
the office of the Vice President for Business Services. 

 
 2. All non-credit classes are scheduled by the office of the Dean for 

Continuing Education Vice President for Workforce Solutions and 
Community Education. 

 
 3. All classes on campus or at the Kluthe Center for Higher Education 

and Technology offered through the auspices of the Center for 
Business and Industry are scheduled through the office of the Vice 
President for Business Services Vice President for Workforce 
Solutions and Community Education. 

 
 4. All home games and practices in the Field House are scheduled by 

the office of the Athletic Director. 
 
 5. The Board Room is scheduled either through the President’s Office, 

or the Vice Presidents’ offices. 
 
 6. The conference rooms are scheduled by the building administrative 

assistants. 
 
 7. The conference roomoffice in the Student Life wing is scheduled by 

the Administrative Assistant to Student Life. 
 
 8. Other activities, meetings, and events which are not listed 

separately in this policy are scheduled through the office of the Vice 
President for Business Services. 

 
 9. The community rooms, conference rooms and food court in the 

Student Center will be scheduled by the office of the Vice President 
for Business Services. 

 
 
 

Board Book Page 45



 
 

  Board Policy               09.05 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised March 8, 2004 
Revised 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 46



09.11 
 
 

Use of College Equipment 
 
 
College equipment is intended for the use of College-related purposes.  
Under exceptional circumstances, private or personal use of said 
equipment may be authorized by the appropriate administrator.  The 
borrower assumes must be informed of the liability for the damages and/or 
loss assumed when equipment is borrowedloaned.  Multi-media 
presentational equipment may be loaned as long as usage does not 
hinder the daily operations or distribution services for instructional 
purposes.  Such loans will be on a short-term, contractual basis.  If 
excessive use of equipment warrants a nominal charge covering 
maintenance, costs will be projected at the discretion of the appropriate 
administrator with the approval of the Vice President for Business 
Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised March 8, 2004 
  
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 47



09.13 
 
 

Telephones 
 
 
Each employee should be cognizant of the fact that he/she represents 
Lake Land College when using the telephone and, therefore, is 
responsible for acting in a courteous, professional manner.  Telephones 
are to be used for College business, and personal calls are discouraged 
and should be held to a minimum.  If a personal toll call is necessary, the 
College must be reimbursed. 
 
The Office of the Vice President for Business Services will post a monthly 
telephone listing statement.  The employee then is responsible for 
reimbursing the College for personal telephone calls indicated in the 
monthly statement.   
 
Calling capability will be assigned by the Vice President for Business 
Services upon consultation with the appropriate Vice President.  On an 
annual basis, the Vice President for Business Services will review the 
telephone capability with the President’s Cabinet, and changes may be 
made in order to ensure cost effectiveness for the College.  
 
This Policy was deleted on (date).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised March 8, 2004 
Deleted 
 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 48



09.14 
 
 

College Keys 
 
 
Staff are provided keys appropriate to their responsibilities at the College.  
In the main, sStaff will be provided keys to the building in which their office 
is located and to their primary teaching or support assignment space.  The 
Vice President for Business Services will approve the distribution of all 
keys, and each employee must verify the receipt of his/her key(s).  Upon 
leaving employment at the College, employees must verify the return of 
all keys as part of the check-out procedure.   
 
The assignment of area and grand master keys for the campus, the Kluthe 
Center, and the Workforce Development Center will be limited.  With the 
exception of the President, members of the President’s Cabinet,Vice 
Presidents, Administrators, Division Chairs,  and the Director of the 
Physical Plant, all requests for master keys must be made in writing with 
supporting rationale for need to the Vice President for Business Services.  
He/she will maintain control and records for all master keys issued.   
 
Employees are responsible for the keys issued to them.  They are not to 
be loaned to family members or others which would enable non-staff 
access to College facilities.  Appropriate disciplinary measures may be 
taken against employees for misuse of College keys.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised March 8, 2004 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 49



09.15 
 
 

Storage 
 
 
Utilization of storage space as well as designation and disposal of surplus 
materials is a College-wide concern.  The Office of the Vice President for 
Business Services is responsible for designating storage areas on the 
main campus and at the Kluthe Center.  When storage space is 
unavailable on campus, the Vice President for Business Services is 
authorized to rent other facilities in the community.  The disposal of 
surplus materials will be in accordance with Board Policy 09.12 and 10.26. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised 
 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 50



10.21 
 
 

Agreements Which Obligate the Institution 
 
 
 
Except as stated in Board Policy, staff members of the College are not 
authorized to sign contracts in the name of the College or to make 
agreements which obligate the institution without prior approval by the 
appropriate Vice President.  Contracts or agreements with a value of 
$10,000 or more must be signed by the Vice President for Business 
Services or President. This includes accepting gifts or services to the 
College and making agreements with private organizations or profit-
making and nonprofit-making organizations.  Grants and agreements 
which require the approval of the President or Chairperson must be 
handwritten, electronically sent, or stamped with the personal signature 
as authorized by them. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised June 14, 2004 
Revised  
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 51



 
Page 1 of 5 

 
10.22 

 
 

Purchasing and Bidding 
 
 
The Board of Trustees, with a view toward maintaining integrity in 
purchases and meeting the needs of the College as well as providing 
safeguards to the tax dollars, does hereby establish the following policies: 
 
 1. Purchasing 
 
  Requests for purchases, with the exception of equipment 

purchases, shall be initiated and approved by cost center 
supervisors via College credit card or Purchase Order.  Requests 
for purchases of equipment must be initiated and approved by cost 
center supervisors via an approved Purchase Order.  College credit 
cards may be used for equipment purchases if approved by the 
President or respective Vice President in advance.   

 
  All Purchase Orders go to the Accounting office for final approval 

and distribution to the supplier/vendor.  Purchases shall be made 
with the intent to procure all equipment, supplies and services using 
competitive practices that ensure that the College is receiving 
maximum value for the money expended.  All departments are 
encouraged to standardize supplies and equipment and, where 
practicable, to consolidate receiving items for single purchase.  Joint 
purchasing with the State of Illinois is encouraged. 

 
  The College will only assume obligations issued on a duly 

authorized Purchase Orders or College credit cards.  The Purchase 
Order and College credit card are the College’s formal methods to 
buy goods and services and, upon acceptance by the vendor, 
become a legal and binding contract obligating the College and the 
vendor.  Purchases made by Lake Land College personnel without 
an approved Purchase Order or College credit card are not valid 
claims against the District until validated by a confirming Purchase 
Order or College credit card and properly approved invoice.  Any 
individual making such a purchase without a Purchase Order or 
College credit card will be held personally liable prior to such 
validation. 

 

Board Book Page 52



 

  Board Policy               10.22 
 
 
 

 
Page 2 of 5 
 

  Due to both time and geographic constraints, College personnel can 
be reimbursed for limited purchases of commodities after proper 
submission of adequate documentation for such expenditures and 
after proper approval by their supervisor.  Requests for authority to 
make these limited purchases must be made on an annual basis to 
the Comptroller, approved by the Vice President for Business 
Services, and reported to the Board of Trustees.   

 
  Whenever a purchase exceeds departmental budgetary allocations, 

a Budget Transfer Request form signed approved by the 
appropriate cost center supervisor must be submitted to the 
Comptroller’s office.  The Comptroller will review the transfer before 
final approval and forward the transfer to the Vice President for 
Business Services in the event of any problems. 

 
  Unless approved in advance by the Board of Trustees, the College 

will not solicit or accept bids or quotes or otherwise purchase from 
its full-time employees or members of the Board of Trustees.  
Employees of Lake Land College shall not accept gratuities from 
prospective suppliers. 

 
 2. Bid Requirements 
 
  Formal bids will be required for all items costing in excess of 

$25,00010,000 for goods, and services, and $15,000 for 
construction.  When a bid is required, the office of the Vice President 
for Business ServicesDirector of Facilities Planning will assist cost 
center supervisors with documents required for completing the 
formal bid process, including a sample advertisement of the public 
notice required to be published in a district newspaper at least ten 
(10) days before the bid due date.  In addition to the public notice, 
every effort will be made to invite bids from vendors known to 
provide such goods and services, or from names maintained in the 
Business office files of vendors requesting personal notification of 
such requests for bids.  If an emergency exists, the bid process may 
be bypassed, as outlined in this Board Policy. 

 

Board Book Page 53



 

  Board Policy               10.22 
 
 
 

 
Page 3 of 5 
 

  Each bidder must receive at least three days’ notice of the time and 
place of such bid opening.  All competitive bids must be sealed by 
the bidder and must be opened by a member or employee of the 
Board at a public bid opening, at which the contents of the bids must 
be announced.  Upon approval by the Board of Trustees, the 
contract for such goods or services will be awarded to the lowest 
responsible bidder considering conformity with specifications, terms 
of delivery, quality and serviceability.  The low bid need not be the 
sole criterion for purchasing; reliability of the supplier and quality 
and availability of service will also be taken into consideration as 
well as the College’s compliance plan and implementation 
procedures to adhere to the Business Enterprise for Minorities, 
Females, and Persons with Disabilities Act (30 ILCS 575/1). 

 
  In the event of a tie between an in-district vendor and an out-of-

district vendor, all other factors remaining equal, the in-district 
vendor shall be favored with the award.  Tie bids between two in-
district vendors shall be decided by the Board of Trustees.  The 
Board reserves the right to reject any and all bids.  At all times, the 
Board of Trustees will seek to purchase goods and services in a 
manner that will be in the best interest of the students attending the 
College and in the best interest of the taxpayers of the District. 

 
  Occasionally, circumstances will exist which necessitate the 

consideration of a single bid.  There may be items that are not 
compatible with presently owned equipment, or it may be of such 
technical nature that only one vendor can respond.  The Board of 
Trustees does not favor awarding a bid where there has been only  

  one response, but a cost center should not be denied equipment 
that is needed to further the functioning of that cost center.  Single 
bid situations will be considered only in those instances when such 
an award is in the best interest of the College.  In such cases, it is 
the responsibility of the cost center making the request to furnish 
the Board of Trustees with sufficient justification for consideration of 
such an award.   

 
  Bid bonds will not be required unless specified in the bid 

specifications.  Specifications will contain a statement relative to 

Board Book Page 54



 

  Board Policy               10.22 
 
 
 

 
Page 4 of 5 
 

payment, which, as a general rule, will be net 90 days.  Invoices will 
be approved at the first Board meeting following the time they are 
received; thus, payment should be made in 30 to 45 days or less.  
Where cash discounts are issued, bills are paid immediately in order 
to take advantage of the discount.   

 
  Complaints on College purchases and contract awards shall be 

made in writing and shall be considered during meetings of the 
Board of Trustees. 

 
 3. Bid Process Exemptions 
 
  Goods and services exempt from the formal bid process include: 
 
   A. Contracts for the services of individuals possessing a high 

degree of professional skill where the ability or fitness of the 
individual plays an important part. 

 
   B. Contracts for the printing of Finance Committee reports and 

departmental reports. 
 
   C. Contracts for the printing or engraving of bonds, tax warrants, 

and other evidences of indebtedness. 
 
   D. Contracts for materials and work which have been awarded 

to the lowest responsible bidder after due advertisement but, 
due to unforeseen revisions, not the fault of the contractor for 
materials and work, must be revised, causing expenditures 
not in excess of ten percent (10%) of the contract price. 

  
   E. Contracts for the maintenance or servicing   of, or provision of   

repair   parts for, equipment which are made with the 
manufacturer or authorized service agent of that equipment 
where the provision of parts, maintenance, or servicing can 
best be performed by the manufacturer or authorized service 
agent. 

 

Board Book Page 55



 

  Board Policy               10.22 
 
 
 

 
Page 5 of 5 
 

   F. Purchases and contracts for the use, purchase, delivery, 
movement, or installation of data processing equipment, 
software, or services and telecommunications and inter-
connect equipment, software, and services. 

 
   G. Contracts for duplicating machines and supplies. 
 
   H. Contracts for the purchase of natural gas when the cost is less 

than that offered by a public utility. 
 
   I. Purchases of equipment previously owned by some entity 

other than the District itself. 
 
   J. Contracts for repair, maintenance, remodeling, renovation, or 

construction, or a single project involving an expenditure not 
to exceed $125,000 and not involving a change or increase in 
the size, type, or extent of an existing facility. 

 
   K. Contracts for goods or services procured from another 

governmental agency. 
 
   L. Contracts for goods or services which are economically 

procurable from only one source, such as for the purchase of 
magazines, books, periodicals, pamphlets and reports, and 
for utility services such as water, light, heat, or 
telecommunications. 

 
   M. Where funds are expended in an emergency and such 

emergency expenditure is approved by three-fourths (3/4) of 
the members of the Board. 

 
 
 
 

__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 12, 1999 
Revised May 10, 2004 
Revised November 14, 2005 
Revised July 14, 2014 
Revised May 9, 2016 
 

Board Book Page 56



10.23 
 
 

Emergency Purchases 
 
 
The President may approve any emergency purchase necessary to 
restore or maintain vital College services.  In the absence of the President 
from the campus, Board Policy No. 04.06 shall prevail.  Such expenditures 
exceeding ten twenty five thousand dollars ($1025,000) for goods, and 
services or fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000) and for construction will 
also require the approval of the Chair and the Secretary of the Board of 
Trustees, or the Vice Chair in the absence of either the Chair or the 
Secretary, and must be reported to the Board and approved by three-
fourths (3/4) of the members of the Board at the next regular scheduled 
meeting.1   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 110 ILCS 805/3-27.1 Illinois Public Community College Act 
 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
 
Page 1 of 1 

                                                 

Board Book Page 57



         10.26 
 
 

Inventory Control 
 
 
 
 1. Receiving Materials on Campus 
 
  All materials ordered for the College will be delivered to Central 

Receiving, whenever feasible, and then delivered to the 
appropriate department.  Central Receiving and/or the Kluthe 
Center Equipment Technician will match the packing slip to the 
items received and ensure that materials are destined for Lake 
Land College.  Any materials to be returned must be handled 
through Central Receiving.  When the materials are delivered in 
the respective cost centers, they will be received by the cost 
center supervisor and reviewed to determine: 

 
  A. That the College is receiving the materials indicated on the 

purchase order with regard to quantity and discount. 
 
  B. That the materials are in acceptable condition. 
 
  C. That terms regarding installation and/or set-up of equipment 

are met. 
 

 2. Receiving Reports 
 

Whenever goods are received either in Central Receiving or by 
College personnel directly, the person receiving the goods must 
document, using the administrative software, that all goods were 
received for each requisition before any payment can be made to 
the vendor.  Any exceptions must be noted so that partial 
payments can be processed or defective goods can be returned.  
If  a  College  procurement  card  is  used  to  purchase goods, the  
   

 
 
__________________ 
Page 1 of 3 

Board Book Page 58



    Board Policy No. 10.26 

 
 
 

individual who approves the monthly credit card charges to be 
paid to the bank is, in effect, indicating that the goods have been 
received by the College and are in working order. 

 
 3. Return of Merchandise 
 
  When merchandise is received which is incomplete or defective, 

the cost center supervisor will: 
 
  A.  Return the materials to Central Receiving. 
 
  B.  Notify the office of the Comptroller. 
 
  The cost center supervisor then will make arrangements with the 

vendor for replacement or credit. 
 
 4. Freight/Damage Claims 
 
  When the dollar amount of damage warrants, a freight claim will be 

filed with the carrier by the Comptroller asking for the 
compensation of damages. 

 
 5. Inventory Tagging 
 
  Capital equipment items will be tagged with an inventory number 

by the office of the Comptroller.  Equipment is defined as a 
movable or fixed unit of furniture or furnishings, an instrument, 
tool, machine, apparatus, or a set of articles which has the 
following characteristics: 

 
  A.  It retains its original shape and appearance with use. 
 
  B.  It is nonexpendable. 
 
  C.  It has a life expectancy of at least three (3) years. 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Page 2 of 3 

Board Book Page 59



    Board Policy No. 10.26 

 
 
 
  D. It does not lose its identity through incorporations into a 

different or more complex unit or substance. 
 
  E. It is not a building or a permanent component of a building. 
 
  F. The unit cost is five ten thousand dollars ($510,000) or more. 
 
 6. Deleting Equipment from Inventory 
 
  All capital equipment to be deleted from the inventory listing will be 

reported to the office of the Comptroller and processed after 
signatory approval by the cost center supervisor and the Vice 
President for Business Services.  The Vice President for Business 
Services then will prepare a list of capital equipment to be 
declared surplus at appropriate intervals and request that the 
Board of Trustees declare that capital equipment to be no longer 
of value to the College.  The Vice President for Business Services 
then will dispose of surplus equipment in a manner most beneficial 
to the College. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised May 10, 2004 
 
Page 3 of 3 

Board Book Page 60



 
10.28 

 
 
 

Insurance Coverage – Property, Casualty, Liability, 
and Employee Benefit Program 

 
 
 

The College shall procure fire and extended coverage insurance on the 
buildings,   furnishings,   machinery,   equipment   and   other   personal 
property used for community college purposes. 

 

 

The College will procure comprehensive liability coverage to protect 
employees, supervised student interns, volunteers and Board members 
against  negligent  or  wrongful  acts  for  all  areas  of  activities,  i.e., 
premises, transportation, business travel, professional errors and 
omissions, and workers’ compensation exposures. 

 

 

Employees shall be bonded on a personal basis where necessary; a 
blanket employee dishonesty bond shall be procured to encompass all 
employee exposures. 

 

 

The College shall also procure and manage the employee benefits 
program, including but not limited to health, dental, life, vision, and 
accidental death and dismemberment policies. 

 

 

All insurance will be purchased from a company or companies authorized 
to write such insurance in the state of Illinois. 

 

 

The Board may, from time to time, employ an insurance consultant to 
determine risk, recommend coverage, and assist in securing such 
coverage. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised December 12, 2016 
Revised 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 61



10.28.01 
 
 

Travel and Accident Insurance 
 
 
The College will procure travel and accident insurance that will cover all 
Board members, employees, their guests, and students while traveling on 
official College business or classroom activity, and while in College-
provided vehicles. 
 
The College assumes no liability for students traveling in their personal 
vehicles to or from classroom instructional activities, regardless of the 
location of the “classroom.” 
 
Board members, employees, their guests, and Sstudents traveling in their 
personal vehicles as a College representative on official College business 
(non-classroom travel), including athletic and agricultural livestock judging 
contests, will be required to sign a statement, in advance of the travel, 
verifying that their personal vehicles are appropriately insured. 
 
Individuals using College-provided vehicles or their personal vehicle on 
official College business shall possess a valid Driver’s License, adhere to 
the rules of the road, and operate the vehicle in a safe manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised September 13, 1999 
Revised 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 62



10.34.03 
 
 

Use of College Vehicles 
 
 
College-owned and College-rented vehicles are available to provide 
authorized transportation for College personnel and students.  Unless 
specifically assigned to a particular Division, Tthe office of the Vice 
President for Business Services is responsible for the maintenance, 
upkeep, and scheduling of College-owned vehicles and also for the 
renting of vans and vehicles to supplement the use of College-owned 
vehicles. 
 
Requests for vehicles, with the proper authorization, shall be made by the 
appropriate cost center supervisor. 
 
If travel is within the state, cost center budgets will be charged the greater 
of the cost of renting the vehicle or the authorized mileage rate.  For out-
of-state travel, the cost center will be charged the authorized mileage rate. 
 
Vehicle keys and the trip ticket must be picked up at the office of the 
Director of Physical Plant Operations.  The driver of College-owned or 
College-rented vehicles must have in his/her possession a valid Illinois 
driver’s license. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised April 12, 2004 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 63



10.38 
 
 

Petty Cash Funds 
 
 
 
The Vice President for Business Services is authorized to establish petty 
cash funds up to the limit allowed by law.  The Vice President for Business 
Services is required to list expenditures made from these funds and make 
the listing available for review by the Board Finance Committee and the 
Board as a whole when requested to do so.  The internal management 
control of these funds rests with the Vice President for Business Services. 
The use of any petty cash funds should be reviewed and approved at the 
beginning of each fiscal year by the Vice President for Business Services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised 
 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 64



 
Page 1 of 5 

11.02 
 
 

Grievance Procedure for Equal Employment Opportunity 
 
 
Statement of Purpose 
 
This policy provides for the prompt resolution of a complaint of 
discrimination arising from any student or employee of Lake Land 
College. The student or employee may seek restitution of the alleged 
discrimination from the procedures outlined herein.   
 
The College will engage in affirmative steps to ensure that applicants and 
employees receive equal employment opportunity regardless of race, 
color, sex, age, religion, national origin, ancestry, disability, marital or civil 
union status, veteran status, sexual orientation or any basis of 
discrimination precluded by applicable federal and state statutes religion, 
sex, sexual orientation, national origin or physical handicap.  
Discrimination is prohibited in such employment practices as recruitment, 
rates of pay, upgrading, layoff, promotion, and selection for training. 
 
Procedures for Resolution of Claims of Discrimination 
 
The College’s discrimination policy reflects a commitment to maintaining 
an environment that is free from discrimination of any complaints and 
expects that the use of these procedures will facilitate a prompt resolution 
of such complaints.  An employee who believes that he or she has been 
discriminated against in violation of this section should report the alleged 
discrimination to the Director of Human Resources. 
 
Initial Attempt to Resolve Complaint 
 
The initial attempt to resolve a complaint of discrimination may be 
achieved by any of the steps outlined below. 
 
 1. The complainant may meet with the Director of Human Resources 

to clarify whether discriminating behavior is occurring and to discuss 
appropriate responses and plans as to how the issue might be 
resolved. 

 
 2. The complainant may request that the Director of Human 

Resources meet with the respondent to discuss alleged 

Board Book Page 65



 
  Board Policy               11.02 
  
 

 
Page 2 of 5 
 

discrimination and to remind him or her of College policies against 
discrimination and to seek a commitment by the respondent to 
comply with these policies. 

 
 3. The complainant may request that the Director of Human 

Resources meet with the complainant and the respondent in the role 
of a mediator to reach resolution of the issue.  During such 
mediation, both the discrimination and successful mediation will 
include a commitment by the respondent to comply with such 
policies. 

 
The Director of Human Resources will maintain a record of the complaint 
in order to document that the claim of discrimination was made and to 
document the outcome of the initial attempt to resolve the complaint. 
 
Initiating a Formal Complaint 
 
An individual may file a formal complaint of discrimination if the initial 
attempt(s) to resolve the complaint was not satisfactory.  An individual 
may also file a formal complaint of discrimination if he or she chooses to 
bypass the initial attempt(s) of complaint resolution for any reason.  All 
formal complaints of discrimination should be submitted in writing directly 
to the Director of Human Resources as soon after the offending conduct 
as possible but in no event more than three months after the most recent 
conduct alleged to constitute discrimination.  If a complainant 
demonstrates sound reasons for failing to come forward within the three-
month period, the Director of Human Resources may decide, in his/her 
sole discretion, to process a formal complaint pursuant to this provision.  
If the Director of Human Resources decides a complaint will not be 
pursued under the formal complaint procedure, there may still be options 
for responding to such a complaint through counseling or informal 
resolution.  If sufficient evidence is still available, an investigation may be 
undertaken by appropriate authorities. 
 
The process for resolution of formal discrimination complaints consists of 
two stages:  (1) investigation and (2) report and recommendation.  Prior 
to investigation, a formal complaint, signed by the complainant, must be 
submitted in writing to the Director of Human Resources.  The written 

Board Book Page 66



 
  Board Policy               11.02 
  
 

 
Page 3 of 5 
 

complaint shall include the Name(s) of the complainant and the 
respondent(s) and the details of the conduct alleged to be discrimination.  
Within seven calendar days of receiving the written complaint, the Director 
of Human Resources will designate a team to investigate the complaint. 
 
Creation of Investigative Team 
 
The Director of Human Resources will convene an investigative team 
consisting of two individuals, one male and one female, who do not have 
a conflict of interest with the complainant(s) or respondent(s).  The 
investigative team may include the Director of Human Resources as long 
as the above criteria are met. 
 
The investigative team shall interview the individual(s) filing a 
complaint(s), the respondent(s), and other individuals named by the 
complainant(s) and the respondent(s) who are identified as having 
information relevant to the allegations.  The investigative team may 
interview other individuals it identifies as having information potentially 
relevant to the complaint.  All interviews should be completed within ten 
College business days, if possible. 
 
Report and Recommendations 
 
Using the information gathered by the investigative team and in 
consultation with the investigative team, the Director of Human Resources 
will prepare a formal report consisting of the complaint, the response of 
the respondent, the investigative team’s findings, and a recommendation 
of the appropriate action(s) to be taken.  The report will be retained by the 
Director of Human Resources. 
 
Determinations 
 
The President will designate the appropriate Cabinet-level member to 
review the report.  The Cabinet-level designee may (1) accept the report 
and recommendations as presented, or (2) request additional information/ 
clarification from the investigative team and consider a modified report as 
appropriate. 
 

Board Book Page 67



 
  Board Policy               11.02 
  
 

 
Page 4 of 5 
 

After consideration of the final report, the Cabinet-level designee will 
make a determination regarding the report.  In consultation with the 
Cabinet-level designee, the Director of Human Resources will prepare 
formal responses to the complainant and respondent which shall include 
a summary of the investigation findings and communication of any action 
to be taken.  Such action will depend on the nature of the offense and 
may include but is not limited to oral or written reprimand, suspension, 
reassignment, or termination. 
 
The complainant(s) and/or the respondent(s) may submit a written 
statement to the President concerning the findings and resulting actions 
within ten (10) business days of having received the College’s formal 
response.  The President may uphold prior findings and 
recommendations or may determine a different response. 
 
Special Circumstances 
 
A student or employee who wishes to bring a claim of discrimination 
against the Director of Human Resources must file the complaint with the 
President, who will appoint the members of the investigative team.  A 
student or employee who wishes to bring a claim of discrimination against 
the President must file the complaint with the Director of Human 
Resources, who will refer the complaint to the Chair of the Board of 
Trustees for investigation. 
 
Retaliation 
 
No individual making a complaint, whether formal or informal, will be 
retaliated against even if a complaint made in good faith is not 
substantiated.  Witnesses involved in any complaint of discrimination will 
also be protected from retaliation. 
 
Retaliation Charge 
 
A student or employee who believes they may have been subjected to 
any form of retaliation after filing a complaint under this policy may file an 
additional complaint regarding the perceived retaliation. 
 

Board Book Page 68



 
  Board Policy               11.02 
  
 

 
Page 5 of 5 
 

Employee Rights 
 
Anyone has the right to file a complaint with the Office of Federal Contract 
Compliance Programs (OFCCP) if he or she believes that a federal 
contractor or subcontractor has discriminated on the basis of race, color, 
sex or national origin.  In most cases, complaints must be filed within 180 
days of the discriminatory action.  Anyone may call OFCCP with a 
question about interpreting the regulations, filing a complaint, or any other 
related matter. 
 
The main telephone numbers for OFCCP national offices are (202) 693-
0101 and (202) 693-1308 (TTY).   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised June 14, 2004 
Revised April 14, 2014 
 

Board Book Page 69



 
Page 1 of 8 

11.04 
 
 

Anti-Harassment 
 
 
Lake Land College is committed to maintaining a working and learning 
environment in which all individuals are treated with respect and dignity.  
Faculty, staff and students have a right to work and learn in an 
atmosphere that promotes equal opportunity and prohibits discriminatory 
practices.  The College is committed to providing a safe and respectful 
environment and will not tolerate harassment or acts or threats of violence 
including but not limited to aggression, hate crimes, bullying, cyber 
bullying, cyber intimidation, domestic violence, stalking, or intimidation 
from students, employees or third parties including visitors and vendors.  
 
Definitions 
 
Workplace and academic environment harassment is a form of 
discrimination.  Unlawful harassment includes unwelcome verbal, written 
or physical conduct by any one person toward another person based on 
that person’s race, color, sex, age, religion, national origin, ancestry, 
disability, marital or civil union status, veteran status, sexual orientation, 
or any basis of discrimination precluded by applicable federal and state 
statutes sex, color, national origin, religion, sexual orientation, age, 
veteran status, political affiliation or disability.  Any such conduct which 
harasses, disregards, interferes with work or academic performance or 
creates an intimidating, offensive or hostile environment is prohibited by 
this policy. 
 
Examples of behavior that would be considered to be unlawful, workplace 
or academic harassment include but are not limited to the following: 
 
 1. Racial, ethnic, or sexual slurs or jokes, whether communicated 

verbally, in writing or electronically. 
 
 2. The use of racial or ethnic nicknames or stereotyping. 
 
 3. Vulgar, offensive or obscene language, noises or gestures. 
 
 4. Display of vulgar, offensive, explicit or obscene pictures, 

photographs, cartoons, materials or web sites. 
 

Board Book Page 70



 
  Board Policy               11.04 
 
 

 
Page 2 of 9 
 

5.  Verbal or physical acts or threats of violence including, but not 
limited to, aggression, hate crimes, bullying, cyber bullying, cyber 
intimidation, domestic violence, stalking, or intimidation. 

 
6.  Actions of sexual harassment, sexual misconduct or sexual violence 

as addressed in Board Policy 11.04.01 Prohibition of Sexual 
Discrimination, Harassment and Misconduct.   

 
Employees and students are encouraged to report all incidents of 
harassment.  Anyone who believes that he or she is being harassed by a 
student, employee or third party at the College, or believes that his or her 
employment or academic career is being adversely affected by such 
conduct should immediately report such concerns.  Employees should 
report concerns to their supervisor, next level administrator, another 
administrator, or the Director of Human Resources. Students should 
report such concerns to one of the three harassment information centers 
(Counseling Services, the College Nurse, or the Director of Human 
Resources). 
 
Retaliation 
 
No individual making a complaint, whether formal or informal, will be 
retaliated against, even if a complaint made in good faith is not 
substantiated.  Witnesses involved in any complaint of harassment will 
also be protected from retaliation. 
 
Retaliation Charge 
 
A student or employee who believes he or she have been subjected to 
any form of retaliation after filing a complaint under this policy may file an 
additional complaint regarding the perceived retaliation. 
 
False or Malicious Complaints 
 
It is a form of harassment to file a knowingly false or malicious complaint 
of harassment or to knowingly provide false information in the course of 
an investigation of such complaint.  Such conduct is considered a violation 
of this Anti-Harassment policy and will subject an employee or student to 

Board Book Page 71



 
  Board Policy               11.04 
 
 

 
Page 3 of 9 
 

disciplinary action.   
 
Supervisory Responsibility 
 
Supervisors will strive to maintain a harassment-free college environment 
by promoting professionalism and by dealing with harassment promptly. 
 
Supervisors will address any observed or reported incident or complaint 
of harassment with seriousness and will take prompt action while 
observing strict confidentiality, whether or not a formal written complaint 
has been filed.  Employees must also ensure that no retaliation will result 
against the person making a harassment complaint.  Supervisors should 
consult the Director of Human Resources regarding any harassment 
complaint reported to them.  
 
Prompt Investigation and Confidentiality 
 
Complaints of unlawful harassment are serious violations of College 
policy.  Once a complaint of unlawful harassment has been made, the 
College has an obligation to promptly investigate the matter.  The College 
will take prompt remedial action to address a substantiated complaint of 
unlawful harassment.  All investigations into claims of unlawful 
harassment will be conducted respectfully.  Every reasonable effort will 
be made to preserve confidentiality, to the extent practicable.  However, 
in the course of an investigation, it will be necessary to discuss the 
complaint with the claimed offender, other persons who may have 
relevant information, and those with a legitimate need to know. 
 
Procedures for Resolution of Claims of Harassment 
 
The College harassment policy reflects a commitment to maintaining an 
environment that is free from harassment of any complaints and expects 
that the use of these procedures will facilitate a prompt resolution of such 
complaints.  An employee or student who believes that he or she has been 
harassed in violation of this section should take action in any of the 
following ways: 

 
 1. Inform the individual, verbally or in writing, that the behavior is 

Board Book Page 72



 
  Board Policy               11.04 
 
 

 
Page 4 of 9 
 

unwelcome and that the behavior should stop immediately.  If the 
unwelcome behavior does not stop, the harassed employee must 
report such behavior to his or her supervisor, and/or the Director of 
Human Resources immediately.  Students must report such 
behavior to one of the three harassment information centers (the 
Counseling Services, the College Nurse, or the Director of Human 
Resources). 

 
 2. An employee should report the unwelcome behavior to his/her 

supervisor and request assistance to stop the behavior.  If the 
employee’s supervisor is the individual involved in the unwelcome 
behavior, report the unwelcome behavior to the appropriate Vice 
President or the Director of Human Resources.  Students should 
report the unwelcome behavior to one of the three harassment 
information centers (the Counseling Services, the College Nurse, or 
the Director of Human Resources). 

 
 3. Report the unwelcome behavior to the Director of Human 

Resources. 
 
Informal Complaint Resolution 
 
Informal harassment complaint resolution may be achieved by any of the 
steps outlined below. 
 
 1. An employee complainant may meet with his or her supervisor or 

the Director of Human Resources to clarify whether harassing 
behavior is occurring and to discuss appropriate responses and 
plans as to how the issue might be resolved.  A student complainant 
may meet with the Counseling Services, the College Nurse, or the 
Director of Human Resources. 

 
 2. An employee complainant may request that his or her supervisor or 

the Director of Human Resources meet with the alleged harasser 
(“respondent”) to discuss the alleged conduct and to remind him or 
her of College  policies  against harassment and to obtain 
agreement by the respondent to comply with these policies.  A 
complainant may request that, when possible, such a conversation 

Board Book Page 73



 
  Board Policy               11.04 
 
 

 
Page 5 of 9 
 

be held without the identity of the complainant being revealed to the 
respondent.  A student complainant request will be handled in a 
similar manner by one of the three harassment information centers 
(the Counseling Services, the College Nurse, or the Director of 
Human Resources). 

 
 3. An employee complainant may request that his or her supervisor or 

the Director of Human Resources meet with the complainant and 
the respondent in the role of a mediator to reach resolution of the 
issue. A student complainant may make a similar request of the 
Counseling Services, the College Nurse, or the Director of Human 
Resources.  Any resolution reached by mediation will include an 
agreement by the respondent to comply with and be bound by such 
policies.   

 
After the informal complaint resolution has concluded, the complainant’s 
supervisor or harassment information center personnel, if involved, will 
forward all documentation concerning the complaint to the Director of 
Human Resources.  The Director of Human Resources will maintain a 
record of the complaint in order to document that the claim of harassment 
was made and to document the outcome of the informal resolution. 
 
Initiating a Formal Complaint 
 
An individual may file a formal complaint of harassment if the informal 
attempt(s) to resolve the complaint was not satisfactory.  An individual 
may also file a formal complaint of harassment if he or she chooses to 
bypass the informal process.  All formal complaints of harassment should 
be submitted in writing directly to the Director of Human Resources as 
soon after the offending conduct as possible but in no event more that 
three months after the most recent conduct alleged to constitute 
harassment.  The three-month limitation on the filing of claims of 
harassment is intended to encourage complainants to come forward as 
soon as possible after the offending conduct and to protect respondents 
against complaints that are too old to be effectively investigated.  If a 
complainant demonstrates sound reasons for failing to come forward 
within the three-month period, the Director of Human Resources has 
discretion whether to investigate the complaint.  If the Director of Human 

Board Book Page 74



 
  Board Policy               11.04 
 
 

 
Page 6 of 9 
 

Resources decides a complaint will not be formally investigated, informal 
resolution or counseling may be recommended. 
 
The process for resolution of formal harassment complaints consists of 
two stages:  1) investigation; and 2) report and recommendation.  Prior to 
investigation, a formal complaint, signed by the complainant, must be 
submitted in writing to the Director of Human Resources.  The written 
complaint shall include the name(s) of the complainant and the 
respondent(s) and the details of the conduct alleged to be harassment.  
The Director of Human Resources will promptly designate a team to 
investigate the complaint. 
 
Creation of Investigative Team 
 
The Director of Human Resources will convene an investigative team 
consisting of two individuals, one male and one female, who are not 
immediate supervisors of the complainant(s) or respondent(s) and who 
do not have a conflict of interest with the complainant(s) or respondent(s).  
The investigative team may consist of the Director of Human Resources 
as long as the above criteria are met. 
 
The investigative team shall interview the individual(s) filing a 
complaint(s), the respondent(s), and other individuals named by the 
complainant(s) and the respondent(s) who are identified as having 
information relevant to the allegations.  The investigative team may 
interview other individuals it identifies as having information potentially 
relevant to the complaint.  All interviews should be completed as soon as 
practicable. 
 
Report and Recommendations 
 
Using the information gathered by the investigative team and in 
consultation with the investigative team, the Director of Human Resources 
will prepare a formal report consisting of the complaint, the response of 
the respondent, the investigative team’s findings, and a recommendation 
of the appropriate action(s) to be taken.  The report will be retained by the 
Director of Human Resources. 
 

Board Book Page 75



 
  Board Policy               11.04 
 
 

 
Page 7 of 9 
 

Determinations 
 
The President will designate the appropriate cabinet-level member to 
review the report.  The cabinet-level designee may:  1) accept the report 
and recommendations as presented; or 2) request additional 
information/clarification from the investigative team and consider a 
modified report as appropriate. 
 
After consideration of the final report, the cabinet-level designee will make 
a determination regarding the report.  In consultation with the cabinet-
level designee, the Director of Human Resources will prepare formal 
responses to the complainant and respondent, which shall include a 
summary of the investigation findings and communication of any action to 
be taken.   Such action will depend on the nature of the offense and may 
include but is not limited to oral or written reprimand, suspension, 
reassignment, or termination.  For students, action would include regular 
college disciplinary procedures as found in Policy 07.28. 
 
The complainant(s) and/or the respondent(s) may submit a written 
statement to the President concerning the findings and resulting actions 
within ten (10)  business  days  of  having  received  the College’s formal 
response. The President may uphold the prior findings and 
recommendation or may determine a different response.  For students, 
action would include regular college disciplinary procedures as found in 
Policy 07.28.01. 
 
 
Special Circumstances 
 
A student or employee who wishes to bring a claim of harassment against 
the Director of Human Resources must file the complaint with the 
President, who will appoint the members of the investigative team.  A 
student or employee who wishes to bring a claim of sexual harassment 
against the President must file the complaint with the Director of Human 
Resources, who will refer the complaint to the Chair of the Board of 
Trustees for investigation. 
 
 

Board Book Page 76



 
  Board Policy               11.04 
 
 

 
Page 8 of 9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised May 10, 2004 

Board Book Page 77



 
  Board Policy               11.04 
 
 

 
Page 9 of 9 
 

Revised May 9, 2005 
Revised May 9, 2011 
Revised September 12, 2016 
 
 

Board Book Page 78



 

Page 1 of 5 

11.05 
 
 

Chronic Communicable Disease 
 
The Illinois Department of Public Health (IDPH) implements guidelines 
and routine measures for definition and control of reportable 
communicable diseases. This policy is to ensure that the College is in 
compliance with those and other state and federal rules, regulations and 
laws. In implementing the policy, the College will consider the welfare of 
the campus community while respecting the confidentiality and privacy 
needs of the individuals involved.  
 
The College does not intend to exclude students, employees or 
community members who have, or who are a carrier of, a reportable 
communicable disease if there is no significant risk of transmission to 
others or danger to the individual. Individuals who have, or who are a 
carrier of, a reportable disease as defined by IDPH must notify the College 
Nurse.  
 
A student An employee, student or community member who has a chronic 
communicable disease, or who is a carrier of a chronic communicable 
disease may attend Lake Land College and/or participate in programs and 
activities whenever, through reasonable accommodation, there is no 
significant risk of transmission of the disease to others, as supported by 
medical documentation. 
 
College decisions made in reference to a student or employee’s health-
related circumstances will depend on each unique instance. When 
necessary, an evaluation team under the direction of the Vice President 
for Student Services, regarding students, or the Director of Human 
Resources, regarding employees, will be convened to gather relevant 
information and submit a report and recommendations to the appropriate 
Vice President or President for action. The evaluation will be conducted 
in conjunction with IDPH guidelines and direction. 
 
A student who is temporarily excluded from classes during an evaluation 
shall be provided the opportunity to make up any work missed during the 
absence. 
  
A student who has a chronic communicable disease or who is a carrier of 
a chronic communicable disease may be denied admission to, or may be 
dismissed from, a particular program or course of study whenever such 

Board Book Page 79



 

 

  Board Policy               11.05 
 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 7 
 

chronic communicable disease has a direct effect on the student’s ability 
to perform so as to render the student not qualified for the program or 
course of study. A student dismissed from attendance at the College or 
participation in a particular program, activity or course of study shall be 
permitted to withdraw and receive a tuition refund.   
 
An employee who has a communicable disease or is a carrier, or is 
suspected of having a communicable disease or being a carrier, may be 
required to undergo an examination at the College’s expense. The 
employee shall be allowed to select the physician, as approved by the 
College. In the event the employee unreasonably delays selection of the 
physician or making an appointment, the College may select the physician 
and/or make the appointment on behalf of the employee. 
 
An employee who is temporarily excluded from working during an 
evaluation shall be entitled to utilize sick leave and other related benefits. 
In the event it is determined that the employee could have been at work 
during the temporary exclusion, no deduction from sick leave shall be 
made for such excluded time. 
 
An employee who cannot retain his or her position shall remain subject to 
the Board’s employment policies including, but not limited to sick leave, 
physical examinations, temporary and permanent disability and 
termination. 
 
Students and employees may be periodically re-evaluated to determine 
their current status.  
 
The College shall respect the right to privacy of any individual who has or 
is a carrier of a communicable disease. Such medical conditions shall be 
disclosed only to the extent necessary to minimize the health risks to the 
individual and others. The College will utilize IDPH guidelines to 
determine who will be notified to assure the individual is properly cared 
for and to minimize health risks to others. 
 
Procedures detailing systematic approaches to prevent and control the 
risks associated with reportable communicable diseases will be 
promulgated consistent with this Policy. 

Board Book Page 80



 

 

  Board Policy               11.05 
 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 7 
 

__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised 
 

1.Students with Chronic Communicable Diseases 
 
  Rules and Regulations 
 
  A. Temporary Exclusion 
 
    Whenever there is a question concerning admittance, 

suspension or dismissal of a student because the student has a 
chronic communicable disease or is the carrier of a chronic 
communicable disease or is reasonably suspected of having a 
chronic communicable disease or of being a carrier, such student 
may be temporarily excluded from the College by the Vice President 
for Student Services, pending a final determination.  A student who 
has been temporarily excluded from the College shall be provided 
the opportunity to make-up work missed during the absence. 

 
  B. Evaluation 
 
    Whenever necessary, a student who has a chronic 

communicable disease  or  who  is  a  carrier  of  a  chronic  
communicable disease or is  

    reasonably suspected of having a chronic communicable 
disease or of being a carrier shall be evaluated by a team that 
may consist of the Vice President for Student Services, other 
appropriate College personnel, a physician, the student’s 
physician, public health personnel, and other consultants 
selected by the President or his/her designee.  The team’s 
report and recommendations, along with any dissenting 
opinions, shall be forwarded to the President for decision.  
Every effort shall be made to complete the evaluation in a timely 
and prompt manner. 

 
  C. Admission Decision 
 

Board Book Page 81



 

 

  Board Policy               11.05 
 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 7 
 

    The President shall make the decision on admitting, 
suspension or dismissal after reviewing the report and 
recommendations of the evaluation team.  The President’s 
decision may be appealed to the Board of Trustees. 

 
  D. Subsequent Evaluations 
 
    The student shall be periodically re-evaluated by the evaluation 

team to determine whether the student’s status continues to be 
appropriate.  The frequency of the re-evaluations shall be 
determined by the team. 

 
  E. Withdrawal 
 
    If such student cannot attend the College or participate in a 

particular program, activity or course of study, the student shall 
be permitted to withdraw and receive a tuition refund. 

 
  F. Confidentiality 
 
    Such student’s medical condition shall be disclosed only to the 

extent necessary to minimize the health risks to the student and 
others. 

 
 2. Employees with Chronic Communicable Diseases 
 
  An employee with a chronic communicable disease or who is a 

carrier of a chronic communicable disease shall be permitted to 
retain his/her position whenever, through reasonable 
accommodation, there is no significant risk of transmission of the 
disease to others.  An employee who cannot retain his/her position 
shall remain subject to the Board’s employment policies, including, 

  but not limited to, sick leave, physical examinations, temporary and 
permanent disability, and termination.   

 
  Rules and Regulations 
 
  A. Temporary Exclusion 

Board Book Page 82



 

 

  Board Policy               11.05 
 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
    In the event there is a dispute as to the right of an employee to 

remain in his/her position, such employee may be temporarily 
excluded from work or transferred to another position by the 
President or his/her designee pending determination of the 
employee’s continued employment status.  During any period 
of temporary exclusion, the employee shall be entitled to utilize 
sick leave and other related benefits.  In the event it is 
determined that the employee could have been at work during 
the temporary exclusion, no deduction from sick leave shall be 
made for such excluded time. 

 
  B. Medical Examinations 
 
    An employee who has a chronic communicable disease or who 

is a carrier or is suspected of having a chronic communicable 
disease or of being a carrier may be required to undergo an 
examination at the College’s expense by a physician licensed 
to practice medicine and surgery in all its branches. 

 
    The employee shall be allowed to select the physician from a 

list supplied by the College.  In the event the employee 
unreasonably delays in selecting the physician or making an 
appointment for an examination, the President or his/her 
designee will select the physician and/or make the appointment 
on behalf of the employee. 

 
  C. Evaluation 
 
    An employee with a chronic communicable disease shall be 

evaluated by a team that may consist of appropriate College 
personnel, the appropriate Vice President, a physician, the 
employee’s physician, public health personnel, and other 
consultants selected by the President or his/her designee.  The 
team’s report and recommendations, including any dissenting 
opinions, shall be forwarded to the President or his/her 
designee.  Every effort shall be made to complete the 

Board Book Page 83



 

 

  Board Policy               11.05 
 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 7 
 

evaluation in a timely and prompt manner.  The President shall 
take appropriate action. 

 
 
  D. Subsequent Evaluations 
 
    The employee shall be periodically re-evaluated by the 

evaluation team to determine whether the employee’s 
placement continues to be appropriate.  The frequency of the 
re-evaluations shall be determined by the team. 

 
  E. Confidentiality 
 
    The employee’s medical condition shall be disclosed only to the 

extent necessary to minimize the health risks to the employee 
and others. 

 
 3. Community Members with Chronic Communicable Diseases 
 
  No person, including minors, who has a chronic communicable 

disease or who is a carrier of a chronic communicable disease shall 
be denied the use of College facilities or services whenever, through 
reasonable accommodation, there is no significant risk of 
transmission of the disease to others. 

 
  Rules and Regulations 
 
  A. Temporary Exclusion 
 
    Whenever there is a question concerning the use of College 

facilities or services because a community member or minor 
has a chronic communicable disease or is a carrier or is 
reasonably suspected of having a chronic communicable 
disease or of being a carrier, such person may be temporarily 
excluded from the College by the President or his/her designee 
pending a final determination. 

 
  B. Initial Evaluation 

Board Book Page 84



 

 

  Board Policy               11.05 
 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
    Whenever necessary, a person who has a chronic 

communicable disease or who is a carrier of a chronic 
communicable disease or is reasonably suspected of having a 
chronic communicable disease or of being a carrier shall be 
evaluated by a team that may consist of appropriate College 
personnel, a physician, the person’s physician, public health 
personnel, and other consultants selected by the President or 
his/her designee.  In the case of a minor, the minor’s parent or 
guardian will be consulted as well as the minor’s physician.  The 
team’s report and recommendations, along with any dissenting 
opinions, shall be forwarded to the President for a decision.  
Every effort shall be made to complete the evaluation in a timely 
and prompt manner. 

 
  C. Subsequent Evaluations 
 
    The person shall be periodically re-evaluated by the evaluation 

team to determine whether the person’s status continues to be 
appropriate.  The frequency of the re-evaluation shall be 
determined by the team. 

 
    If such person cannot use the College facilities or services, he 

or she shall receive a refund for fees. 
 
  D. Confidentiality 
 
    Such person’s medical condition shall be disclosed only to the 

extent necessary to minimize the health risks to students, 
employees and others. 

Board Book Page 85



      11.06 
 
 

Bloodborne Pathogens 

 

 

It is the policy of Lake Land College to comply with the federal 
Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA), Bloodborne Pathogens 
Standard, 29 CFR 1910.1030, as mandated by the Illinois Department of 
Labor, Safety Inspections, and Education Division and as endorsed by 
the Illinois Community College Board.  Procedures in compliance with the 
standard are detailed in the College’s Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure 
Control Plan. It is the responsibility of the College’s Health Services to 
monitor and review the plan as mandated by the standard and to bring 
revisions to the attention of appropriate College officials as needed.  The 
plan is kept on file and is available for review in the College’s Health 
Services office. 
 
Training shall be required within 90 days of hire for all staff.  In high 
exposure areas such as the cafeteria, the physical plant, police 
department, health services, athletic training, coaching, physical 
education, and allied health employees shall be required to attend an 
annual refresher thereafter.  Documentation of procedures for and 
records of such training will be kept on file in Human ResourcesHealth 
Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised June 14, 2004 
Revised April 14, 2014 
 

Board Book Page 86



Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 87



 
Page 1 of 2 

11.08.01 
 
 

Employees’ Records 
 
 
The negotiated agreements with the Lake Land College Faculty 
Association, Lake Land College Paraprofessional Union, and the Lake 
Land College Custodial Association, and the American Federation of 
State, County, and Municipal Employees specifically state the conditions 
for the maintenance of employee personnel files.  These documents are 
legally binding upon the College and the Board of Trustees for the period 
of their duration. 
 
For all other employees of the institution not covered by these 
agreements, personnel records shall be maintained under the following 
conditions:   
 
 1. A copy of all personnel records relating to any employee will be 

maintained in an official personnel file which is located in the Human 
Resources Office. 

 
 2. All personnel records shall be in writing and kept in paper format or 

electronically.  Written material relative to an employee’s conduct or 
service shall be placed in the personnel file. An employee has the 
right to review such material.  The employee shall acknowledge that 
he/she has read such material by affixing his/her signature to the 
actual copy to be filed, but it shall be understood that such signature 
merely signifies that he/she has read the material in question.  Such 
signature indicates neither agreement nor disagreement with its 
content.  If the employee refuses to sign the copy to be filed, then 
the administrator shall, with a third party as witness, state in the file 
the above refusal. 

 
 3. The employee shall have the right to answer in writing any material 

filed in his/her personnel file, and his/her answer shall be attached 
to the file copy. 

 
 4. Upon request by an employee, he/she shall be given access to the 

non-confidential documents in his/her file without delay.  
Confidential documents are those materials used to evaluate a 
person’s qualification prior to employment, to which the individual 
waived the right to access (placement credentials, letters of 

Board Book Page 88



 
 
  Board Policy              11.08.01 
 
 
 

 
Page 2 of 3 
 

reference, etc.).  At his/her written request, each employee shall be 
furnished, without cost, a copy of any material in his/her file.  No 
items may be removed from the employee’s file, except for brief 
inspection or copying. 

 
 5. Any access to the file by any party other than the employee or the 

employee’s supervisors shall be authorized only with the advance 
approval of the employee and the Vice President for Business 
Services.  No material will be duplicated or released to any external 
party without a subpoena, court order, or written authorization from 
the employee and the Vice President for Business Services.  

 
 6. It is the employee’s responsibility to see that grade transcripts or 

certificates for job related training courses are given to the Human 
Resources Office for inclusion in the employee’s file.  The Human 
Resources Office will provide written acknowledgment to the 
employee of receipt and filing of such documents in the employee’s 
file if requested. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
__________________ 

Board Book Page 89



 
 
  Board Policy              11.08.01 
 
 
 

 
Page 3 of 3 
 

Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised May 10, 2004 
Revised April 14, 2014 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 90



11.13 
 
 

Traffic Regulations and Parking 
 
 
The President will recommend to the Board of Trustees parking and traffic 
regulations on lots and roadways which are owned and maintained by the 
College.1  The regulations will include the enforcement measures to be 
taken to uphold the rules and regulations, including fines and penalties.   
 
After the regulations are approved by the Board of Trustees, they shall be 
published online via by the College Police Department website. in student 
publications made generally available to students and staff (Lake Land 
College Motor Vehicle Parking Regulations brochure).  Fines and 
penalties established by the Board of Trustees for violations of the 
regulations may include, but not be limited to, the withholding of 
transcripts and the towing of vehicles, if necessary, at the owner’s 
expense.  Individuals with unpaid traffic tickets may be denied registration 
until financial obligations to the College are met. 
 
Individuals charged with a violation of vehicle regulations/parking may 
request a review of the said violation and the fine or penalty imposed by 
written request/notice to the Police Chief.  The Police Chief, then, will hold 
an informal hearing with the complainant and the patrol officer.  The 
decision concerning each case by the Police Chief will be final. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 103-42.2 ILCS 
 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised April 14, 2014 
Revised 
 
Page 1 of 1 

                                                           

Board Book Page 91



 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 

11.17 
 
 

Food Service and Catering 
 
 
 
The College’s food service and catering operations are primarily for the 
benefit of students and College personnel.  The student union is managed 
by Lake Land College under the direction of the Vice President for 
Business Services. 
 
The principal thrust of the program is to provide food service to students 
and employees at a reasonable price, within the constraints of the food 
costs, labor costs, and the College budget. 
 
Special groups not comprised primarily of students or employees may be 
served from time to time.  Such groups will normally be connected, directly 
or indirectly, to one or more identified missions of the College. 
 
Food and other offerings available through the student union will be within 
the limitations of the facilities and personnel of the program. 
 
The College contracts with outside vendors to provide food service and 
vending services on campus as well as off campus sites.  These contracts 
are managed by the Director of Auxiliary Services. 
 
All on-campus catering, including both College and non-College 
functions, whether on-campus or at the Kluthe Center, will be arranged 
through the Office of the Director of Auxiliary Services.  Outside vendors 
used to facilitate the College’s catering needs shall be approved by the 
Board of Trustees.   
 
Caterers shall provide a current food service permit and proof of public 
liability insurance, Such outside vendors must have a certified catering 
kitchen facility, must have a certified food handler in charge of the facility, 
and will be required to comply with all state and local food handling rules 
and regulations. 
  
Price lists for goods and services available through the student union will 
be clearly posted in the serving area and may also be provided through 

Board Book Page 92



 

  Board Policy               11.17 
 
 

 
Page 2 of 3 
 

promotional materials, advertisements, and notices posted in classroom 
buildings.  A copy of these posted prices as well as a copy of the guide to 
catering and prices and services will be available in the Office of the 
Director of Auxiliary Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 93



 

  Board Policy               11.17 
 
 

 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised June 14, 2004 
Revised December 10, 2007 
 

Board Book Page 94



 

 

Board Book Page 95



Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 96



Page 2 of 3 

 

Board Book Page 97



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

       

  

 

Board Book Page 98



Attachment A 

Page 1 of 5 

11.04.01 

Prohibition of Sexual Discrimination, Harassment and 
MisconductSex Discrimination 

 

Lake Land College is committed to maintaining a safe and healthy 
educational and employment environment that is free from sex 
discrimination,  and sexual harassment and misconduct on the basis of 
sex, which includes discrimination based on sexual orientation or 
gender-related identity. 

 

Sex discrimination, includes sexual harassment, sexual misconduct and 
sexual violence are prohibited. It is the policy of the College that no staff 
member, student or other members of the College community shall be 
subject to sexual discrimination, harassment or misconduct sex 
discrimination in any form. 

 

Individuals found to have violated this policy will be subject to 
disciplinary action up to and including termination and/or expulsion from 
the College as determined by such administrative or Board action as is 
required by law, Board policy and procedure, and/or collective 
bargaining agreement 
Sexual Harassment Defined 
 
Sexual harassment means any unwelcome sexual advances, requests 
for sexual favors, or any conduct of a sexual nature when: 
 
1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a 

term of condition of an individual’s employment or academic 
advancement, evaluation or grades; 

2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used 
as the basis for employment or academic decisions affecting such 
individual; or 

3. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering 
with an individual’s work or academic performance or creating an 
intimidating, hostile or offensive working and academic 
environment. 

 
Hostile environment sexual harassment is unwelcome sexual conduct 
that is sufficiently severe or pervasive that it alters the conditions of 
employment and/or academic environment and creates an environment 

Board Book Page 99



Board Policy No. 11.04.01 
 
 

Page 2 of 5 

that a reasonable person would find intimidating, hostile, uncomfortable, 
or inappropriate.  
 
Examples of Sexual Harassment 
 
Examples of behavior that would be considered sexual harassment 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 

  

Board Book Page 100



Board Policy No. 11.04.01 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 

 
1. Direct or implied threats that submission to sexual advances will 

be a condition of employment, work status, or promotion; 
2. Suggesting sexual involvement to or demanding sexual 

involvement of a another employee where such person has made 
it clear that such a suggestion or demand is unwelcome; 

3. Any unwelcome communication that is sexually suggestive, 
sexually degrading or implies sexual motives or intentions, such 
as sexual remarks or innuendos about an individual’s clothing, 
appearance, or activities; jokes about sex or gender-specific traits; 
public conversations about sexual activities or exploits; suggestive 
sounds such as howling, catcalls, and whistles; 

4. Unwelcome and offensive name calling or profanity that is sexually 
suggestive, sexually degrading, implies sexual intentions, or that 
is based on sexual stereotypes or sexual preference; 

5. Unwelcome leers, stares, gestures or slang that are sexually 
suggestive, sexually degrading or imply sexual motives or 
intentions; 

6. Unwelcome physical contact or closeness that is sexually 
suggestive, sexually degrading, or sexually intimidating such as 
the unwelcome touching of another’s body parts, cornering or 
blocking an individual, standing too close, following, stalking, 
kissing, hugging, pinching, etc.; 

7. Any coerced sexual act or physical assault; 
8. Unwelcome written or pictorial display or distribution of 

pornographic or other sexually explicit materials such as 
magazines, videos, films, Internet material, etc.; 

1.9. Any other unwelcome gender-based behavior that is offensive, 
degrading, intimidating, demeaning or that is based on sexual 
stereotypes and attitudes. 

 

Jurisdiction 
 

This policy applies to students, faculty, staff, employees, appointees, or 
andthird parties visitors, regardless of sexual orientation or gender-
identity, whenever the misconduct occurs: 

 
A. On on College property; or 

 

B. Off off College property if: 

Board Book Page 101



Board Policy No. 11.04.01 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 

 
1. The conduct was in connection with a College or College- 

recognized program or activity; or 
 

2. The conduct may have the effect of creating a hostile 
environment for a member of the College community. 

 

Title IX Coordinator 
 

The College has designated the Director of Human Resources as the 
Title IX Coordinator and the Senior Human Resources Generalist and 
College Compliance Coordinator as the Deputy Title IX Coordinator. 
 

Reporting 

 

Any employee or visitor to the College who believes he/she has been 
subjected to sexual harassment or discrimination in violation of this 
Policy should report this to the Director of Human Resources.  Any 
student who believes she/he has been subjected to sexual harassment 
or discrimination should report this to the Title IX or Deputy Title IX 
Coordinators. Students may also contact one of the College’s 
confidential advisors for guidance regarding reporting options.  
Employees are encouraged to resolve any complaints internally but 
have the option of contacting the Illinois Department of Human Rights 
or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (within 180 or 300 days, 
respectively) to file a complaint.  Students may pursue claims of sexual 
harassment with the United States Office for Civil Rights.  

 

Retaliation Prohibited 

Any form of retaliation, including intimidation, threats, harassment and 
other adverse action taken or threatened against any complainant or 
person reporting or filing a complaint alleging sexual discrimination, 
harassment or misconduct or any person cooperating in the 
investigation of such allegations (including testifying, assisting or 
participating in any manner in an investigation) is strictly prohibited.  
Individuals may also pursue retaliation claims under the State Officials 
and Employee Ethics Act, the Whistleblower Act and Illinois Human 
Rights Act.  Anyone found to have engaged in unlawful retaliation will 

Board Book Page 102



Board Policy No. 11.04.01 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 

be subject to discipline up to and including termination, criminal 
penalties and fines may also be assessed for engaging in retaliation in 
violation of the Ethics and Whistleblower Acts.  

False Complaints 

Allegations of sexual harassment are extremely serious. Therefore, all 
claims of harassment must be made in good faith. Any claims that are 
brought while knowingly false, with malicious intent, or out of retaliation 
are a violation of this Policy. Individuals who violate this Policy by filing 
a knowingly false complaint shall be subject to discipline, up to and 
including termination.  Additionally, a false complaint brought under the 
Ethics Act could result in criminal penalties and/or fines.  

Consequences 

Individuals found to have violated this Policy shall be subject to 
disciplinary action up to and including termination from employment, 
expulsion and banned from the College.  Additionally, an individual who 
engages in retaliation under the Ethics and Whistleblower Acts may also 
be subject to fines and/or penalties. 

Implementing Procedures 
 

The College will maintain and publish procedures implementing this 
policy which set forth: 
1. Definitions of prohibited conduct; 
2. Responsibilities of and contact information for the College’s Title 

IX Coordinator and Director of Human Resources; 
3. Options for assistance following an incident of sexual 

discrimination, harassment and/or misconductretaliation; 
4. Procedures for reporting and confidentially disclosing sexual 

discrimination, harassment and/or misconduct or retaliation; 
5. Complaint investigation and appeal procedures; 
5.6. Consequences of a violation of the prohibition on sexual 

harassment, retaliation for knowingly making a false report;  
6.7. Prevention and education programming provided to College 

students and employees; and 
7.8. Training and education provided to College employees involved in 

Board Book Page 103



Board Policy No. 11.04.01 
 
 

Page 6 of 5 

responding to, investigating or adjudicating sexual discrimination, 
harassment, and misconduct incidents incidents of retaliation, or 
in the referral or provision of services to survivors. 

 
 

The procedures This Policy will also be published in the Student Guide 
to Addressing Sexual Harassment and Sexual Misconduct section of 
the online Student Handbook available on the College’s website. 
Printed copies will be available from the offices of Counseling 
Services, Health Services, Human Resources and Vice President for 
Student Services. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Adopted August 8, 2016 
Revised May 8, 2017 
Revised 

 
 
 

Board Book Page 104



Board Book Page 105



 
 

Board Book Page 106



 
 

Board Book Page 107



 
 

 

Board Book Page 108



 
 

Board Book Page 109



 
 

Board Book Page 110



 
 

Board Book Page 111



 
 

Board Book Page 112



 
 

Board Book Page 113



 
 

Board Book Page 114



Board Book Page 115



Board Book Page 116



Board Book Page 117



Board Book Page 118



Board Book Page 119



Board Book Page 120



Revised 11/6/17 

 

Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Schedule of Meetings 

2018 
 
 

January 8, 2018 6:00 p.m.  Webb Hall 081 
 

February 12, 2018 6:00 p.m. Webb Hall 081 
 

March 12, 2018 6:00 p.m. Webb Hall 081 
 

April 9, 2018 6:00 p.m.  Webb Hall 081 
 

May 14, 2018 6:00 p.m.  Webb Hall 081 
 

June 11, 2018 6:00 p.m.  Webb Hall 081 
 

July 16, 2018 6:00 p.m.  Webb Hall 081 
 

             August 13, 2018              6:00 p.m.      Kluthe Center Rm. 220  
 

September 10, 2018 6:00 p.m.  Webb Hall 081 
 

October 8, 2018 6:00 p.m.  Webb Hall 081 
 

November 12, 2018 6:00 p.m.  Webb Hall 081 
 

December 10, 2018  6:00 p.m.  Webb Hall 081 
 
 

Board Book Page 121



Board Book Page 122



Board Book Page 123



Board Book Page 124



Board Book Page 125



 

 

Board Book Page 126



Board Book Page 127



Board Book Page 128



Board Book Page 129



Board Book Page 130



Board Book Page 131



 

 

Board Book Page 132



LAKE LAND COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HUMAN RESOURCES REPORT 
January 08, 2018 

 
 
The following employees are recommended for leave 
 
 Laumbattus, Doug FMLA 11/09/17-12/05/17 
 Overstreet, Desiree FMLA (intermittent) 11/10/17-02/18/18 
 Shoot, James FMLA 11/12/17-05/12/18 
 
Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are recommended for additional appointments 
      Position Effective Date 
Part-time 
    Homann, Mary CNA Evaluator 10/30/2017 
    Primary Position is Allied Health BNA Adj Faculty                
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor-Disability Services - Student 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is International Stu Ambassador             
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor-Student Community Education 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is International Stu Ambassador             
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor - Student Learning Assistance Center 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is International Stu Ambassador             
    Jobe, Bryan Tutor-Associates-Disability Services 12/18/2018 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Associate-Lrng Asst              
    Jobe, Bryan Tutor - Associate Community Education 12/18/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Associate-Lrng Asst              
    Kimball, Linda CNA Evaluator 10/30/2017 
    Primary Position is Allied Health BNA Cln Instr               
    Lytle, Brianna Adjunct Faculty Math and Science  01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is Tutor-Bachelor's-LRC                     
    Moluba Ebali, Geonel Bookstore Rush Worker 12/19/2017 
    Primary Position is International Stu Ambassador             
    Schuring, Tyler Basketball Scorers/Timers 12/06/2017 
    Primary Position is Fitness Center Specialist                
    Smithenry, Stacey Tutor-Disability Services - Student 10/15/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr             
    Smithenry, Stacey Tutor-Student Community Education 10/15/2017 
   Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr   
     
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Shuff, Kara Pathways Substitute Instructor 12/15/2017 
    Primary Position is Pathways Classroom Assistant             
    Smithenry, Stacey Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 10/15/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr            
  

Board Book Page 133



End Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are ending their additional appointment 
     Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
    Uphoff, Beulah  BNA clinical instructor (PT) 12/17/2017 
 
Position Recommendations 

The following positions have been recommended by the Lake Land College 
President’s cabinet 
 
Position 
Administrative Assistant to College Advancement   01/01/2018 
Support staff to Paraprofessional class 
  
Athletic Trainer – 12 month to 10 month position 
  01/01/2018 

 New Hire-Employees 
  The following employees are recommended for hire 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Cloe, Melvin Dual Credit Instructor 12/12/2017 
 
Full-time 
 Donaldson, Lynne Student Services Specialist III 01/09/2018 
 Houser, Sydney Administrative Asst to Allied Health-Dental 02/01/2018 
 
Full-time - Grant Funded 
 Corda, Jamie Perkins Specialist 01/09/2018 
 Collins, Kevin Correctional Custodian Instr-Shawnee CC 01/02/2018 
 Flowers, Timothy Horticulture Instructor-Vandalia CC 01/02/2018 
 Herendeen, Sierra Administrative Assistant to Juvenile Justice 01/02/2018 
  Programs-WDC 
    Parish, Wesley Correctional Custodian Instr-IYC Harrisburg 01/02/2018 
 Shales, Louis Correctional Custodian Instructor-Vienna CC 01/02/2018 
 Spence, Latrina Correctional Cosmetology Instr-Vienna CC 01/02/2018 
 Copher, Julie Correctional Office Assistant – Vienna CC 01/02/2018 
 
Part-time 
    Ames, Lilly Newspaper Editor - Student Newspaper 11/06/2017 
    Duncan, Carah Marketing and Public Relations Intern 01/08/2018 
    Hale, Aaron Dual Credit Coordinator 12/13/2017 
    Kilzer, Barbara Adjunct Faculty Allied Health  01/08/2018 
    Longcor, Elizabeth Bookstore Rush Worker 12/11/2017 
    Pals, Justin Adjunct Faculty Math and Science  01/08/2018 
    Peoples, Tyrese Newspaper Editor - Student Newspaper 10/17/2017 
    Smithenry, Stacey Tutor - Student Learning Assistance Ctr 10/15/2017 
    Swann, Jodi Adjunct Faculty Social Science  01/08/2018 

Board Book Page 134



 
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Huston, Ruby Adult Education Instructor 12/06/2017 
 
College Work Study 
    McWhorter, Destiny College Work Study - Early Childhood Edu 11/01/2017 
  
Terminations/Resignations 
  The following employees are terminating employment 
      Position Effective Date 
Part-time 
    Aitken, James Adj Faculty Technology 12/05/2017 
    Bingham, Thomas Adj Faculty Technology 12/05/2017 
    Bolin, Marletta Allied Health BNA Cln Instr 12/17/2017 
    Brown, Charles Adj Faculty Technology 12/05/2017 
    Darimont, Lynn Adj Reading Instructor 12/17/2017 
    Frainey, James Adj Doc College Funded Instr 12/01/2017 
    Lambert, Harry IDOC CPR Instructor 12/07/2017 
    Miller, Danelle Adj Faculty Math/Science 12/17/2017 
    Patel, Palak Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr 12/08/2017 
    Ray, Zoe Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr 12/13/2017 
    Sudkamp, Dustin Graphic Designer Pre-Flight 11/29/2017 
    Tucker, Hannah Library Assistant 11/22/2017 
    Westbrooks, Lisa Adj Doc College Funded Instr 12/01/2017 
  
Transfers/Promotions 
  The following employee is recommended for a change in position 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
 Mueller, Rebecca Library Circulation Assistant  01/09/2018 
     Transferring from:  Library Circulation Assistant - PT 
  

Board Book Page 135


	TITLEPG.TLE Regular meeting
	Table of Contents Jan 2018 Board Book
	010818 Agenda Board of Trustees Meeting
	121117 Minutes
	HR Section 5 Policy Changes Packet Memo and 8 Policies
	HR Policy Updates for IDJJ Language
	050408.POL with edits
	050409.POL
	050413.POL with edits
	050414.POL with edits
	050415.POL with edits
	050416.POL with edits
	050418.POL with edits

	Calendar of Events 2018
	Correspondence I Uphoff
	Correspondence II  McElkeney
	MEMO Policy Changes Sections 9 thru 11 from 2017 Annual Review
	Sections 9 thru 11 Proposed Policy Changes Dec 2017
	Section 9 Proposed Policy Changes Fall 2017
	0904.pol
	0905.pol
	0911.pol
	0913.pol
	0914.pol
	0915.pol

	Section 10 Proposed Policy Changes Fall 2017
	1021.pol
	1022 pol
	1023.pol
	1028.pol
	102801.pol
	103403.pol
	1038.pol

	Section 11 Proposed Policy Changes Fall 2017
	1102.POL
	1104.POL
	110801.POL
	1113.pol
	1117.pol


	Board Memo_Sexual Harassment Board Policy
	Resolution Adopt Changes to Board Policy 110401 regarding Sexual Harassment
	policy 110401 policy revisions
	Faculty Seniority List Memo
	Faculty Seniority List 2018_FINAL
	FY2018 - November Financials Packet
	Schedule of Meetings 2018
	Parapro MOU Memo on Position Changes_Redacted
	Parapro MOU Memo on Testing_Redacted
	FY18 CWSP BOT Memo
	Intergov Agreement IECC_Redacted
	January 2018 Marketing and Branding Consultant
	January 8 2018 Human Resources Board Report



